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Suffolk New College
Strategic Report for the year ended 31 July 2021

OBJECTIVES AND STRATEGY

The members of the Corporation of Suffolk New College present their report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 July 2021.

Legal Status

The Corporation was established under the Further and Higher Education Act 1992 for the purposes of
conducting Suffolk New College. The College is an exempt charity for the purposes of Part 3 of the
Charities Act 2011.

The Corporation was incorporated as Suffolk College Corporation. The Secretary of State granted
consent to the Corporation to change the College's name to Suffolk New College with effect from 1
August 2007.

The College maintains a single overall name but operates specific campus names to help with the
identification of the multiple campuses, these include 'Ipswich', 'Suffolk Rural' for Otley, and 'on the
coast' for Leiston and Halesworth. The College integrated Otley from Easton & Otley College in January
2020, and opened the Halesworth site from September 2020.

Mission, Vision and Strategy

Suffolk New College is committed to playing an active and vital role in the area's skills transformation
that is required to fuel a more productive and high value economy.

Suffolk is an area of growth and is predicted to continue to increase its population and economy. The
College has many opportunities to support this and the key areas for development are articulated in the
Strategic Plan. We have a clear sense of direction, and our plan, under its five strategic focus areas,
sets out how we will fulfil the Strategic Aims of the College. As a multi-campus College across a number
of locations, we service a wide-ranging community, with complementary aspects of urban, rural and
coastal communities.

During the 2020/21 Academic Year, the COVID-19 pandemic led to an exceptional year for the College
and we have worked hard to maintain our services whilst still operating safely. During the first lockdown
in 2020, the College moved to virtual learning and remote working, however during the later lockdowns
in 2020/21, the College tried to sustain more face-to-face delivery.

From September 2020, the College had in place a range of COVID-19 measures to help ensure that
staff and students could return to all of the sites. These included one-way systems, restrictions on
people in spaces, extra cleaning, mask wearing, PPE and fogging of communal areas. All of these
measures helped to mitigate the risk of COVID-19 and the College had very few cases and very few
classes affected by the pandemic.
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As it was unclear whether further lockdowns would occur, the Senior Management Team took the
decision to frontload practical sessions whilst students were on site, and when later restrictions occurred
in November and the new year, this meant that theory sessions could be prioritised which were easier
to deliver online. It was not possible during the lockdown from January to Easter 2021 to continue to
teach on site, but the College was able to keep more staff safely on site delivering core services by
setting up on-site test centres in line with Government requirements. The College worked extensively
to put in place large-scale test centres in both Ipswich and Rural, and with separate arrangements at
Leisten, that enabled staff and students to safely return following the January to Easter 2021 lockdown.
This was a massive piece of work to co-ordinate and fortunately additional funding that was received
helped to pay for the costs incurred. The College used agency healthcare professionals and received
volunteers via the Department of Education initiative with Volunteer Matters. It was following this that
the College moved to twice weekly lateral flow testing for all staff and students and this remained in
place until the end of the academic year.

During the whole year, the College has had additional welfare processes in place for vulnerable staff
and students, alongside the deployment of IT equipment to people who needed it. The College geared
up to provide more mental health support as a result of the impact of the pandemic. For students this
included additional resources, dedicated appointments and specific resources. For staff the College
invested into an Employee Assistance Programme.

During the year, the College priority was to maintain the majority of our services, but there were full cost
or income-generating areas, which were significantly affected such as apprenticeships, where people
pay to use our buildings, leisure learning, hire the sports centre, and client services. The reduction in
apprenticeship take-up that the College experienced was recognised across the country as a key issue
for all colleges and training providers.

Suffolk New College commits to treating everyone with dignity and respect. We wish the ethos of the
College to reflect a community that is free from discrimination, valuing all members of our College
community equally and fairly.

The Values of Suffolk New College are:

• openness and trust; having a learning culture to support all staff;
• providing platforms for expressing opinions, concerns and views for all staff at all levels;
• involvement in decision making;
• recognising, appreciating and celebrating achievement and success areas;
• actively encouraging and finding time for continued professional development, creating time to

generate new ideas and experiment;
• valuing and respecting differences and views of others, promoting diversity'.

The strapline for the college for 20/21 was, 'Exceptional Student Experience'.
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Strategic Report for the year ended 31 July 2021

Implementation of Strategic Plan

In January 2016, the College adopted a strategic plan for the period to 2020, which was updated in
2019 to 2024. This strategic plan includes property and financial plans. The Corporation monitors the
performance of the College against these plans. The plans are reviewed and updated each year. It is
a rolling five years Strategic Plan and therefore, on an annual basis the next five years are planned.

The College's continuing strategic focus areas are:

• Raising Standards and Aspirations
• Linking with Employers and Promoting Employability
• Responding to Local and Regional Priorities
• Seeking Involvement with Staff, Learners and The College's Community
• Growth and Sustainability

The College is on target for achieving these objectives.

The plan has been expanded to include the multi-site approach and the Strategic Action Plans have
been updated accordingly. There are a number of specific strategic action plans that sit below the
overall strategic plan which set out the ways in which the College will achieves these strategic focus
areas. These plans are kept up to date and reviewed regularly. There is an annual process of signing
off the previous year and agreeing the next year for each area.

Within the Strategic Plan, analysis on the local labour market drives the key projects and priorities. 'This
shows how the College will support projects such as the Sizewell C Nuclear if it proceeds. There are
plans to develop partnerships along the East Anglian Coast with the University of Suffolk and East
Coast College in the provision of qualifications relevant to, for example, food and food production; and
wind farm provision. Tech Campus, a building specifically focussed on delivering a digital curriculum
adjacent to the Ipswich Campus, which was being constructed throughout 2020/21, ready for a
successful opening in September 2021, is another indicator of the College's response to employer need.
There is also potential development of new qualifications within Construction Services and Engineering
sectors.

CURRENTANDFUTUREDEVELOPMENTANDPERFORMANCE

Student Numbers

The College has increased 16-18 funded student numbers for the past five years. They have increased
from 2,062 in 2016/17, to 2,096 in 2017/18, 2,221 in 2018/19, 2,721 in 2019/20, and 2,950 in 2020/21,
which includes the Rural Campus and growth in 16-18 year old students.

The increase in funded numbers are as a result of new curriculum, and expansion into the additional
sites of Rural, Leiston and Halesworth, which have opened up new geographic areas. The College has
also supported Ipswich Opportunity targets to increase social mobility and qualifications within the
Ipswich area, and this alongside with increases in the demographics have resulted in additional student
numbers.
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The College has projects underway to further expand facilities, Tech Campus from September 2021,
which will support the College with further expansion and meeting the needs of LEP priorities, as well
as student and employer needs. There is also additional capacity at the Rural and On the Coast sites,
which will facilitate growth in numbers in those locations.

Curriculum Developments

The College focuses upon providing a curriculum that meets the needs of students, employers and the
wider community. The offer takes into account the needs of providing a skilled workforce for the future.
The College's curriculum provides an extensive range of learning across a broad number of areas,
which are Science and Digital Industries; Care Industries; Creative Arts; Engineering and Construction;
Land Based, Animal and Equine; Service Industries; Sport and Public Services; Inclusive Learning;
English and Mathematics; ESOL and Apprenticeships.

The College implemented a number of enhancements to the teaching and learning experience in
2020/21 and continued to focus on integrating the Rural Campus into the College as this process had
been affected by the pandemic as the merger took place from January 2020, a matter of weeks before
the first lockdown. The first full year for the College as a whole including Suffolk Rural has been 2020/21
but it has been significantly disrupted by COVID-19. As part of the merger integration plans, the College
developed the curriculum plans for the Rural site and land based curriculum. As the integration took
place mid-year these plans came into effect from September 2020, rather than during 19/20.

The College continued in 20/21 to maximise data from the systems available, in fact due to the impact
of remote working and learning, IT systems become even more critical. A major initiative during the
year was to enhance the College's approach to cyber security and business continuity plans. Core
systems which supported the College's operations during the year included dashboard reporting
systems, online safeguarding platforms, e-portfolios, which enabled the curriculum teams to have real
time and integrated data on student progress, attendance and performance. The teaching teams
continue to focus on delivering an Exceptional Student Experience. Adjustments, as a consequence of
the now larger College and ongoing pandemic situation, were also made to curriculum planning,
enrolment and recruitment.

Throughout the exceptional year of 20/21, the College has responded well to the demands to maintain
the student experience. The plans for the year focussed on offering real time synchronised learning
with 75% on site outside of any lockdown periods, and the remainder offered remotely in live sessions.
It was determined that students needed this level of engagement to ensure that they would complete,
but also to cope with any gaps as a result of the interruptions to learning experienced at school during
19-20. Staff were supported with these new approaches through a range of CPD activities and they
rose to the challenge. There was no break in learning for any students, the College never closed and
we continued to operate on a daily and weekly basis for all students.

All staff are proud of what the College achieved during 20/21 and considered that the open and
encouraging style from top-down engendered the ongoing 'can do' mentality.
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The College was robust in ensuring all sites were safe and that all COVID-19 safety measures were in
place for students to return to College. As a result, we were able to open for students over the year to
ensure that there was little impact on both the student and apprenticeship experience. Apprenticeship
Assessors were also quick to resume essential site visits where COVID-19 safety was assured.

The College provided seamless learning support during lockdown. Teaching staff have developed
alternative and additional teaching and learning resources allowing the students to continue to develop
their knowledge and understanding even during periods of lockdown or self-isolation. This, combined
with effective Progress Tutor support, has been invaluable in supporting students with wellbeing and IT
issues.

The use of a variety of digital systems enabled virtual learning to continue and for the effective support
of students during the lockdowns that took place in 20/21. Where students had no internet access work
was emailed to social workers to print and given to students, and over 200 students were supported
with temporary IT equipment.

The College delivered the first year of the new T Level in Construction, specifically Design, Surveying
and Planning. Qualifications, which progress onto the T Levels, were implemented in 19/20, and
investments were made into staff and equipment for this key area of curriculum development.

The College has continued to work in partnership with Inspire Ltd on the Princes Trust, tailored for
young people who are not in education, employment or training (NEETs) within the local community,
and worked with Needham Market Football Club to offer high quality sports qualifications which support
players with progressing into relevant careers and high education.

Future Prospects

The College has a strong financial track record as demonstrated by previous financial health
performance. The College has continued to maintain strong reserves, whilst making investments into
equipment and facilities with a particular focus on the Government priority of Science, Technology,
Engineering and Mathematics (STEM) curriculum. Despite the challenges of COVID-19 in 20/21, the
College was able to make investments into equipment and provision at Rural. The project of Tech
Campus, which is the new Digital Hub, which opened in September 2021, also progressed throughout
the year despite the impact of COVID-19 and Brexit.

The College had an Ofsted Inspection in November 2018 and the overall result was 'Requires
Improvement,' despite being considered 'Good' in five of the eight areas.

Inspectors found the College needed to promote better personal development in its students, improve
its leadership and management, and provide a better service for learners with additional needs. The
categories considered to be 'good' were programmes of learning for both young people and adults, with
significant investment in apprenticeships for plumbing and domestic gas training.

Inspectors commended the College's friendly learning environment, and the work of teachers in helping
students grasp an understanding of their potential careers.
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The quality of education was also rated 'good', with Ofsted including in their report that teachers' plans
for lessons mean 'most learners build their skills and knowledge in a logical manner'. Teachers also
make sure students have learned one topic before moving onto the next part of a curriculum, but they
were not using assessments to help students further their education, leading to students 'not knowing
how to achieve the grades they aspire to'.

The inspectors confirmed that safeguarding arrangements are effective. Leaders and managers have
taken a range of actions to improve safeguarding arrangements. Leaders have strengthened
arrangements for checking the safety ofvulnerable learners. Learners feel safe and are safe at College.

Two visits by Ofsted took place in 20/21, including a COVID-19 specific visit and the first monitoring
visit post full inspection. Both of these went well with positive feedback from Ofsted on the progress
the College has made.

The College was successful with re-accreditation ofMatrix, which is the assessment of the independent
advice and guidance approaches that are in place. This was achieved College-wide including all of the
campuses.

The College is actively involved in the LEP and with key groups who are leading the strategic vision for
Suffolk. The College was successful in 2018/19 with a bid of £1.6m towards a, new digital hub, called
Tech Campus, which was built during 20/21, which opened in September 2021.

The College worked jointly with City College Norwich to de-merge Easton & Otley College so that
Easton merged into City College Norwich, and Otley into Suffolk New College from January 2020. This
has increased the size of the College and supported the growth and expansion plans whilst securing
land based provision for Suffolk. The addition of this campus enabled the College to grow considerably
in 19/20, and during 20/21 student numbers were achieved which expanded further the provision at
Suffolk Rural. The College has further growth plans and these are on track, which makes this additional
campus more sustainable and cost-effective.

Despite the challenges of COVID-19 during 20/21, the College was still able to make investments and
to progress planned capital works. The College received c£930k of FE Capital Allocation (FECA)
funding towards essential maintenance and conditions issues. The majority of this funding was spent
at the Rural Campus, which is a much older campus with poorer condition, as rated by both the FECA
survey and the College's condition survey. These works are part of the College's new estates strategy
which was developed in 20/21.

The College considers it appropriate to operate on a 'going concern' basis having due regard to best
practice developments in the UK Corporate Governance Code 2016 in respect of going concern and
risk management reporting.

The College believes that it will be able to continue in operation and meet its liabilities, taking into
account the current position and principal risks for at least the next 18 months, including cash flow and
reserves.

The College has a Financial Plan linked with the Strategic Plan, with strong reserves, cash flow, cash
days and there has been no risk to the College's bank covenants.
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RESOURCES

The College has various resources that it can deploy in pursuit of its strategic objectives.

The College employs 263 academic staff, 251 business support staff and 85 learning support
practitioners, 599 in total (based on headcount as at 31 July 2021 ).

In 2020/21, there were 2,931 16-18 year olds, 1,611 part-time adults and 448 apprenticeships, 85 HE
students in partnership with the University of Suffolk.

The College has £20.9 million of net assets (including £12.6 million of pension liability) and long-term
debt of £7.1 million. Tangible resources include the main college site, which includes the digital hub.

The College has a strong reputation locally as a community college that focuses on key skills to support
positive destinations, with over 97% progressing onto employment or a further course. Regionally the
College has a prominent presence and the Principal represents the College on a number of groups.
The College has strong links with New Anglia Local Enterprise Partnership (NALEP), Energy Skills
Board, University of Suffolk, Suffolk Chamber of Commerce, Ipswich Chamber of Commerce,
Association of Colleges in the Eastern Region (ACER), LANDEX, Felix Thornley Cobbold Agricultural
Trust, Suffolk Agricultural Association, Association of Colleges National Apprenticeship Group, Ipswich
Central, Ipswich Borough Council and Suffolk County Council. Links with employers have grown over
the past few years, with an increased emphasis on business development at the College. There are a
number of stakeholder groups taking place, engaging with business representatives, along with
businesses who have given their support to the College and are represented in the College atrium on
logo boards in Ipswich.

STAKEHOLDERS

Suffolk New College has many stakeholders including:

• Its current, future and past students

• The employers it works with

• Its staff and the three recognised trade unions of UCU, Unison and NEU Leadership.

• The professional organisations in the sectors where it works

• Its partner schools and universities; the wider college community

• The local borough council, local authority and the Local Enterprise Partnership

The College recognises the importance of these relationships and engages in regular communication
with them through the College Internet site and by meetings.
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PUBLIC BENEFIT

Suffolk NewCollege is an exempt charity under the Part 3 of the Charities Act 2011 and is regulated by
the Secretary of State for Education. The members of the Governing Body, who are trustees of the
charity, are disclosed on page 1. In setting and reviewing the college's strategic objectives, the
Governing Body has had due regard for the Charity Commission's guidance on public benefit and
particularly upon its supplementary guidance on the advancement of education.

In delivering its mission, the college provides identifiable public benefits through the advancement of
education to approximately 5,000 students, including over 250 students with high needs.

The college provides courses without charge to young people, to those who are unemployed and adults
taking English and maths courses. The college adjusts its courses to meet the needs of local employers
and provides training to almost 1,000 apprentices. The college is committed to providing information,
advice and guidance to the students it enrols and to finding suitable courses for as many students as
possible regardless of their educational background.

FINANCIAL POSITION

Financial Results

The College generated a surplus before other gains and losses in the year of £2,896,000 (2019/20:
Surplus of £9,147,000), with a surplus total comprehensive income of £2,668,000 (2019/20: Surplus of
£5,032,000). The surplus in 2019/20 included the impact of the merger with Otley Campus, and the
surplus in 2020/21 includes the proceeds from a land sale deal. These equate for the differences in the
years.

The decrease in respect of total comprehensive income is the actuarial loss on the pension scheme in
2020/21. See Note 25 for further details.

Developments

Tangible non-current asset additions during the year amounted to £2,193,000.

The College received a capital grant from the DfE as part of a national initiative to support the upgrading
ofthe College estate following lockdown. The College has also built a purpose-built facility for advanced
technologies in Ipswich part funded by a LEP grant. This provides exclusive access to digital labs and
industry standard workshops for specialist courses. Students and Apprentices have access to the latest
technologies with support and mentoring from local tech companies and innovators.

The College also continued to invest in industry standard equipment required for teaching, maintaining
the high level of IT hardware, implementing systems across the College's multi-sites to facilitating
working practices and making adaptations along with improvements to the building to provide enhanced
teaching facilities in response to student and employer feedback.

There were intangible non-current asset additions of£30,000 during the year, in respect of new software.
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Reserves

The College has reserves of £20,886,000 (2020: £18,218,000) and cash and short-term investment
balances of £7,429,000 (2020: £4,730,000).

Sources of Income

The College has significant reliance on the education sector funding bodies for its principal funding
source, largely from recurrent grants. In 2020/21, the FE funding bodies provided 87.1 % of the
College's total income. {2019/20: 84.2%), excluding any one-off donation items, such as the merger
with Otley and other donations from DfE.

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting

The college is committed to reducing its carbon emissions and has taken the following measures in
the year to improve energy efficiency:

• Within building projects, to utilise renewable energy sources as far as possible, as evidenced
by the achievement of BREEAM Very Good with Tech Campus.

• A new Net Zero Sustainable Staff and Student Group to focus on organisation and personal
targets to reduce the amount of carbon emissions and to focus on green teaching and
approaches.

The college's greenhouse gas emissions and energy use for the period are set out below:
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Emissions Emissions
CO2e CO2e Increase I

Scope Fuel Consumption (metric (metric (Decrease) from
tonnes) tonnes) 2019/20 levels
2020/21 2019/20

1- Direct Gas 2943167 kWh 539.07 352.09 186.98
Gas Oil 6476 Litres 17.86 2.76 15.10
Propane 64797 Litres 100.02 28.17 71.85
Kerosene 43133 Litres 136.96 45.37 91.59
Transport Fuel 2900 Litres 7.29 7.64 (0.35)
Fuel Card
(Diesel) 1153 Litres 2.9 1.13 1.77
Fuel Card
(Unleaded) 707 Litres 1.55 0.58 0.97

Total Scope 1 (Direct) 805.65 437.74 367.91
2- Indirect Electricity 3388931 kWh 719.57 623.78 95.79

Total Scope 2 (Indirect) 719.57 623.78 95.79
Business
Mileage 58782.1 Miles 16.21 22.89 (6.68)

3- Additional Fuel in Rental
Indirect Vehicles 132 Miles 0.04 0.82 (0.78)

Taxis £1,358.76 0.37 1.27 (0.90)
Total Scope 3 - Additional

Indirect 16.62 24.98 (8.36)
TOTAL GROSS EMISSIONS (in metric tonnes) 1,541.84 1,086.5 455.34

Intensity Ratio (Based on staff as at 31 July
2021 - 603 2.56 1.98 0.58

Qualification and reporting methodology

We have followed the 2019 HM Government Environmental Reporting Guidelines. We have also
used the GHG Reporting Protocol - Corporate Standard and have used the 2021 UK Government's
Conversion Factors for Company Reporting.

We have estimated that the College has paid £2 per mile for taxi fares. We have estimated that the
fuel in rental vehicles, business mileage and taxis were used at a rate of 1 gallon per 50 miles. We
have then calculated emissions based on an estimate that this fuel was 50% unleaded and 50%
diesel and based on the data for an average car.

Intensity ratio

The intensity ratio figure has been calculated by taking the total headcount of all staff that were
employed by Suffolk New College as at 31 July 2021, and were reported in the year-end accounts
at that time.
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Financial Plan

The College Corporation approved a financial plan in July 2021, which sets objectives for the period to
2023. The College met in-year requirements to submit updated cash flows and returns to the ESFA
during this exceptional year. The College's plans have been adapted to take into consideration the
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic.

Treasury policies and objectives

The College has treasury management arrangements in place to manage cash flows, banking
arrangements and the risks associated with those activities. Short-term borrowing for temporary
revenue purposes is authorised by the Principal. All other borrowing requires the authority of the
Corporation.

Cash Flows and Liquidity

At £3,636,000 (2019/20: £2,600,000), net cash flow from operating activities was positive.

The net cash flow was a result of maintaining and in some areas growing income levels, along with
managing expenditure. There is also a robust strategy in place for debt prevention and credit control.

The College has a £1 O million long-term loan, which was put in place as part of the financing sources
for the College's new build, of which £7,081,000 remained at the year-end (2020: £7,439,000)

At the year-end, the College had cash at bank and in hand of £7,429,000 (2020: £4,730,000).

COVID-19 did impact on a number of income streams, most significantly apprenticeship funding as the
majority of existing apprentices were placed on Furlough and employers were reticent to taking on new
apprentices over the lockdown period. The College also lost some income in full cost and trading areas.
To help mitigate these losses, the College did use small amounts of support from the national HMRC
furlough scheme but only in areas which were not grant funded. During this period, the College
continued to trade and was careful with ensuring that any suppliers were promptly paid and that the
College supported local traders as far as possible and any commitments that were already made.

Reserves Policy

The College requires reserves for contingency and investment purposes. This enables the College to
make investments towards technology and building programmes. Therefore, the technology available
for teaching and learning remains current and enhances the student experience. In addition, the
College's building is kept in good condition and the internal spaces are conducive to teaching and
learning.

The College currently has reserves of £20,886,000 (2020: £18,218,000)

The College has a separate Reserves Policy in place approved by the Corporation. In line with the
profile of the funding received, the College maintained a net current asset ratio of at least 1.5 and a
minimum of 25 cash days throughout the period to ensure that the College met all of its liabilities when
due, as required by the policy.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The College has well-developed strategies for managing risk and strives to embed risk management in
all that it does. Risk management processes are designed to protect its assets, reputation and financial
stability. The Corporation has overall responsibility for risk management and its approach to managing
risks and internal controls is explained in the Statement on Corporate Governance.

A risk plan, which includes a register of the College's risks, is maintained at the College level. The
Audit & Risk Committee reviews this on a termly basis. The risk register identifies the key risks, the
likelihood of those risks occurring, their potential impact on the College and the actions being taken to
reduce and mitigate the risks. Risks are prioritised using a consistent scoring system. A new Risk
Management Policy was adopted in 20/21, which sets out the College's approach to risk management
and how all levels of the approach link together to provide the reassurance that Governors need.

The register is shared with managers via Senior Management Team and Business Support Managers
for their comments and contribution.

The main factors affecting the College are outlined below along with the action taken to minimise them.
Not all the factors are within the College's control. Other factors besides those listed below may also
adversely affect the College.

COVID-19

The key risks associated with the COVID-19 pandemic that the College managed in 20/21 relate to an
adverse impact on finances short and medium term, particularly apprenticeship and trading income,
which were more affected than others. The College accessed government funds available to colleges
to help mitigate these risks including the Furlough scheme, the College also received in-year funding
for the over recruitment of 16-18 year olds which helped to mitigate the loss of apprenticeship income.
There were efficiencies made as a result of the lockdown and less operational activity on sites, and
these along with growing some areas of income helped to improve the budget situation and to offset
the drops in income.

The college carried out extensive budget planning with different scenarios, considering the worst case
to best case scenario. A range of online products for adults and commercial students was put in place
to help maintain provision rather than to lose all of this income. There was also a focus on
apprenticeships in areas not as affected by the economic downturn.

The College identified the increased risk to vulnerable young people and our students during this period
and the lockdowns that occurred. Procedures were put in place to include the careful monitoring of
those at risk and additional funding was allocated to increase IT equipment available for disadvantaged
students.

The College adhered to all government and Public Health England rules and guidance for Colleges and
ensuring that appropriate risk assessments and safety measures were put in place across all sites. The
College fully implemented testing requirements for staff and students.
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Government Funding

The College has considerable reliance on continued Government funding through the further education
funding bodies. In 2020/21, 87 .1 % (excluding on-off donations) of the College's revenue was ultimately
publicly funded and this level of requirement is expected to continue. There can be no assurance that
Government policy or practice will remain the same, or that public funding will continue at the same
levels or on the same terms.

The College receives Industry Capacity Building Funding to increase the number of students
experiencing longer work placements in preparation for the requirements of the new T Levels, where
placements are a key component. The funding from this grant enabled the College to gain some
experience of these longer placements, which will help with the implementation of T Levels going
forwards. It was challenging to meet these requirements in 20/21 due to the pandemic. There is no
clawback for 20/21 and the College has put in place plans to meet these targets for 21/22. The College
was not alone with these challenges and across the sector there was difficulty in meeting them.

Apprenticeship numbers, both levy and non-levy, increased in 2020/21 from 2019/20 and 2018/19 as a
result of the merger, however the pandemic did slow down the predicted growth and many apprentices
were placed on furlough which caused breaks in their learning. The College now offers standards;
moving to standards in all of the key areas where they are now available.

The College managed to maximise the funding available under the Adult Education Budget as much as
possible up to the point of the lockdown but there was some disruption to provision that had been
planned in year. The College delivered enough that there will not be a clawback.

The College received a further increase to the number of High Needs Students, funded directly by the
ESFA (Education Skills Funding Agency) for element 2. The College's high needs funded numbers
increased to 255 (2020: 233)

The College is focussed on utilising the funding levels currently available and to pursue opportunities
for further funding. The College has oversight of all of the funding streams through the Funding Group,
which meets regularly to plan the use of funding and to advise Senior Managers on strategies and
information related to funding.

These risks are also mitigated in a number of ways:

• funding is derived through a number of direct and indirect contractual arrangements;

• ensuring that the College is rigorous in delivering high quality education and training;

• considerable focus and investment is placed on maintaining and managing key
relationships with the funding bodies;

• ensuring the College is focused on those priority sectors which will continue to benefit;

• regular dialogue with funding bodies;

• a focus on increasing funding from a range of sources.
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Quality

Following the Ofsted inspection in November 2018 a key risk for 19/20 and 20/21 has been to ensure
that the quality of the College is continuously improving to meet both student and Ofsted expectations,
including the developments towards more online learning. The College undertook a number of actions
to manage this risk, even during what was an exceptional year, and although a re-inspection by Ofsted
has not yet taken place, there are some indications to demonstrate how successful the College's
approach has been. The actions undertaken included having clear targets and reporting on the
progress against these targets particularly to be scrutinised by governors. Lesson observations and
learning walks took place to validate the level of teaching and learning taking place. This was particularly
important at the Rural campus to be able to pitch their level of performance at the point of merger and
then to work on a plan for any areas which needed to improve.

Ofsted carried out a COVID-19 specific visit in November 2020 and a monitoring visit in February 2021.
Both of these visits went well and the College received positive feedback from them. The College also
received a scheduled visit from the FE Commissioners Team following the merger in November 2020.
This visit resulted in three recommendations which were progressed by the College, and overall they
stated that the College had progressed the integration of Otley (now Suffolk Rural) well.

Attendance and retention rates were closely monitored throughout the year and governors through the
Academic Scrutiny Committee, which became a full Committee of Corporation in 20/21. The Governors
who attend remain close to the curriculum and individual directorates that they were linked to.

Indications of whether the work in this area was successful are that, maths and English GCSE
achievement rates improved; overall, all maths and English are improved (which includes functional
skills); and Level 3 16-18 achievement is at national average (and more for technical qualifications
which are harder for learners to achieve).

Tuition Fee Policy

In line with the majority of other Colleges, Suffolk New College balances the need to charge an
appropriate level of fee, which is also in line with the ESFA expectations, but also to support adults with
entering education during what has been challenging financial times. As a result of this and comparison
with other providers, the College maintained tuition fees at the same level for the past few years. The
risk for the College if fees are increased too high is that demand falls off. This will impact on the growth
strategy of the College.

This risk is mitigated in a number of ways:

• Ensuring the College is rigorous in delivering high quality education and training, thus
ensuring value for money for students.

• Close monitoring of the demand for courses as prices change.

• Opportunities for students to pay in instalments but for a first payment to be paid which
amounts to a 1/3 of the total fee.

• A proactive management of tuition fee repayments and a strategy to resolve any debts
as they occur.
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Maintain adequate funding of pension liabilities

The financial statements report the share of the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) deficit on
the College's Statement of Financial Position in line with the requirements of FRS102.

This risk is mitigated by an agreed deficit recovery plan with Suffolk Pension Fund.

Failure to maintain the financial viability of the College

The College's financial health grade was classified as 'Outstanding', confirmed by the ESFA in July
2021. This was due to income levels, reserves, cash flow, performance against key performance
indicators including ratios and strong financial management. Notwithstanding that, the continuing
challenge to the College's financial position remains the constraint on further education funding arising
from the on-going cuts in public spending whilst maintaining the student experience.

This risk is mitigated in a number of ways:

• By rigorous budget setting procedures and sensitivity analysis.

• Regular in year budget monitoring.

• Robust financial controls.

• Exploring procurement efficiencies.

• Diversifying income streams.

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The College's long term financial objectives are:

• To remain financially viable

• To increase income to the College from diverse income streams.

• To remain within the financial covenants as set out in the loan facility terms for the £10 million
long-term loan from Barclays Bank.

• To maintain a good level of short-term liquidity.

Performance indicators have been agreed to monitor the success of these objectives.

The short-term financial priorities and objectives, taking into consideration the end of year position for
20/21, of the college for 2021/22 are:

► Achievement of the approved budget deficit;

► Minimum levels of cash reserves/ cash days in hand;

► Reduce the staff costs as a% of income KPI to be closer to the benchmark of 65%;

Compliance with loan covenants; and

► Timely completion of major capital projects, Tech Campus which opened for teaching in
September 2021; Sustainable Construction from September 2021.
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These have been identified to reflect the challenges facing the college in 2021/22, and will be used

to help monitor and review in-year financial performance.

Education and

Key Performance Indicators Target Actual from Skills Funding
accounts for 20/21 Agency Sector

Specific"

EBITDA as % of income >6% 19.99% 10.75%

Borrowings as % of income <40% 23.93% 27.81%

Current ratio >1 1.85 3.43

Staff Costs as % of income <65% 61.41% 69.14%

Financial Health Score Good Outstanding Outstanding

EBITDA is arrived at by taking the surplus before other gains and losses £2,877k, adding back the
depreciation and amortisation figure (£2,548k), interest and other finance costs (£490k). This comes
to £5,915k, which is expressed as a percentage of the income £29,596k.

The Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) sector specific KPl's differ from the accounts in the
following ways:

• Income and EBITDA are adjusted for release of capital grants (1,070k), and net return on the
pension scheme (£-1,133k).

• EBITDA is also adjusted by taking off the donations (£2,9 and £116K) from both sides of total
income and EBITDA.

• The current liabilities are adjusted by removing the accrual for holiday pay (£407k), and capital
grants (£2,886k), which impacts the current ratio.

FE Choices has four key performance indicators:

• Success Rates

• Learner Destinations

• Learner Satisfaction

• Employer Satisfaction

The College is committed to observing the importance of sector measures and indicators and uses the
FE Choices data available on the GOV.UK website, which looks at measures such as success rates.
The College is required to complete the annual Finance Record for the Education and Skills Funding
Agency (ESFA).
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Student Achievements

In 2020/21 headline achievement rates for students are;

Key Performance 2019/20 2020/21 National Average
Indicators (KPls) (NA)
Headline Achievement
Rates

• Classroom Based • 87.85% • 88.2% • 84.6%
Learning

• Apprenticeships • 51.4% • 27.1%° • 59.5%
Timely

• Apprenticeships • 75.8% • 65.0% predicted • 68.4%
Overall

'WBL Timely Achievement %- As we now have a blend of historical Frameworks and new Standards,
it is not clear how the timely calculation occurs for Standards. This has been significantly affected by
COVID-19 and the number of apprentices on furlough during 20/21.

'WBL Overall Achievement % - during 20/21 COVID-19 meant interruption of delivery, less volume of
practical skills in the workplace; furlough and delayed EPA have seen overall achievement regress in
line with the national picture.

The College had a significant number of students taking either or both maths and English at Functional
Skills or GCSE level. In 20/21 the headline achievement rates are:

Key Performance Indicators 2019/20 2020/21 National Average
(KPls) (NA)

Headline English and Maths
Achievement Rates

• GCSE English 9-1 • 92.1% • 97.2% • 83.0%
• GCSE English 9-4 • 34.9% • 48.5% • N/A
• GCSE Maths 9-1 • 90.9% • 91.7% • 82.2%
• GCSE Maths 9-4 • 25.6% • 45.3% • N/A

Equality

The College is committed to ensuring equality of opportunity for all who learn and work here. We
respect and value positively differences in race, gender, sexual orientation, disability, religion or belief
and age. We strive vigorously to remove conditions which place people at a disadvantage and we will
actively combat bigotry. This policy is resourced, implemented and monitored on a planned basis. The
College's Single Equality Scheme is published on the College's website.

The Single Equality Scheme and Action Plan is updated annually to ensure compliance with all relevant
equality legislation including the Equality Act 2010. The Single Equality Scheme is shared with key
community stakeholders. The College undertakes equality impact assessments on all new policies and
procedures and publishes the results.
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Equality impact assessments are also undertaken for existing policies and procedures as they are
reviewed.

The College is a 'Disability Confident' employer and has committed to the principles and objectives of
the Positive about Disability standard. The College considers all employment applications from disabled
persons, bearing in mind the aptitudes of the individuals concerned, and guarantees an interview to any
disabled applicant who meets the essential criteria for the post. Where an existing employee becomes
disabled, every effort is made to ensure that employment with the College continues. The College's
policy is to provide training, career development and opportunities for promotion, which, as far as
possible, provide identical opportunities to those of non-disabled employees.

The College has committed to the 'Mindful Employer' initiative to assist the mental health wellbeing of
staff. The College has an online Equality & Diversity training programme, which all staff have
participated in. Refresher training and training for new starters is carried out on an ongoing basis and
regular updates are provided at CPD events.

The College also has CHAD (Challenge Hatred and Discrimination) which provides ways for students
and staff to challenge inappropriate behaviour themselves or seek to support as required. It reminds
people of what is acceptable behaviour and treatment of others.

Gender Pay Gap Reporting

The College submitted the data for 2020, as required by the government, by the 5 October 2021.
Although this set of accounts is 2020/21, the way the data is complied for gender pay gap reporting, it
is important to note that this information relates to March 2020.

In summary when comparing the gap in 2019 to the gap in 2020, it has reduced. Headcount also
changed significantly between 31% March 2019 (445) and 31 March 2020 (673) with the addition of
Suffolk Rural.

The figures in the College Overall table below in italics are the
comparison ones for 2019.
Snapshot date 31st March 2020

College Overall

Mean Median

Head Count Mean Hourly rate

Male 271 (187) £14.24 (£14.94)

Female 402 (258) £12.76 (£12.88)
673 (445)

Median
Head Count Hourly rate

£13.97
Male 271 (187) (£15.49)

£11.40
Female 402 (258) (£11.64)

673 (445)

Mean gender pay gap 2020

Mean gender pay gap 2019

10.39%

13.79%

Median gender pay gap
2020

Median gender pay gap 2019

18.40%

24.85%
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Overall, the college employs significantly more females than males. The analysis of the pay quarter
data shows that there are more women than men at the lower, lower middle, and upper middle, however
there are slightly more males to females in the upper quartile. When compared to the 2019 data the
distribution across the quarters was the same however in the upper middle quartile although there were
more females than males it was not as big a gap as there now is shown for 2020. This data is shown
below:

Quartile Bands - snapshot
date 31°'March 2020

Male
Head Male Female Female Total Head
Count Percenta e Head Count Percenta e Count

54 32.1% 114 67.9% 168

Quartile 2 (lower
middle uartile 58 34.3% 111 65.7% 169

Quartile 3 (upper
middle uartile 66 39.3% 102 60.7% 168

Quartile 4 (upper
uartile 93 55.4% 75 44.6% 168

271 402 673

Quartile Bands - snapshot date
31March 2019

Male
Head Male Female Female Total Head
Count Percenta e Head Count Percenta e Count

38 34.2% 73 65.8% 111

Quartile 2 (lower
middle uartile 36 32.7% 74 67.3% 110

Quartile 3 (upper
middle uartile 48 42.5% 65 57.5% 113

Quartile 4 (upper
uartile 65 58.6% 46 41.4% 111

187 258 445

A copy of the submitted data has been published on the College's website and can be found at
https://gender-pay-gap.service.gov.uk/Employer/u04sxJTy/2020
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Disability Statement

The College seeks to achieve the objectives set down in the Equality Act 2010. We aim to:

• Promote equality of opportunity between disabled people and other people.

• Eliminate discrimination that is unlawful under the Disability Discrimination Act.

• Eliminate harassment of disabled people that is related to their disability.

• Promote positive attitudes towards disabled people.

• Encourage participation by disabled people in public life.

• Take steps to meet disabled people's needs, even if this requires more favourable treatment.

Trade Union Facility Time

The Trade Union (Facility Time Publication Requirements) Regulations 2017 require the College to
publish information on facility time arrangements for trade union officials at the College, based on the
year to March 2021.

Number of employees who were relevant union Full-time equivalent employee number
officials during the relevant period

7 1.2

Percentage of time - % Number of employees

o o
1- 50 7

51 -99 o
100 o

The total cost of facility time £46,980

The total pay bill £16,570, 711

The percentage of the total pay bill spent on facility time 0.2835%

Time spent on paid trade union activities as a
percentage of total paid facility time

4.42%

21



Suffolk New College
Strategic Report for the year ended 31 July 2021

Payment Performance

The Late Payment of Commercial Debts {Interest) Act 1998, which came into force on 1 November
1998, requires Colleges, in the absence of agreement to the contrary, to make payments to suppliers
within 30 days of either the provision of goods and services or the date on which the invoice was
received. The target set by the Treasury for payment to suppliers within 30 days is 95 per cent. During
the accounting period 1 August 2020 to 31 July 2021, the College paid 78% of its invoices within 30
days. The College incurred no interest charges in respect of late payment for this period.

Going Concern

The College Senior Management Team and Governors have worked together to analyse areas of the
budget affected by COVID-19 as it was anticipated that this would be an ongoing issue for 20/21 with
no indication of when recovery would be possible. At the start of the year, areas of income at risk were
identified, risk rated, tracked and where possible actions were taken. Decisions were taken with regards
to delaying or halting vacancies, and making efficiencies through the non-replacement of leavers. On
the flip side, full time recruitment was buoyant and the College needed to ensure sufficient staff were in
place to meet the growing need. Fortunately, some in-year funding was confirmed in January 2021.

Some analysis took place on non-pay expenditure to determine where efficiencies could be made as a
result of part of the delivery c25% plus during the lockdown periods the move to remote working and
learning, and also as a result of the college sites not being fully open. In line with other colleges and
also government regulations, the College furloughed a few staff in areas where they were solely funded
by commercial and trading income, which ceased as a result of the COVID-19 situation. No staff were
furloughed who were paid for from the main ESFA or other government funding streams.

The integration of the Otley Campus, with effect from 01/01/2020, occurred in line with budget and any
change to the financial plans for 19/20 and 20/21 have not been negatively affected by any change
which has come to light post-merger, but rather as a result of the pandemic, which is not within the
College's, control. The College managed to mitigate the impact of the COVID-19 situation in 20/21,
and it was the updated valuation of the LGPS which had an impact to the below the line position.

The College has already taken the opportunity to further increase the numbers of students and range
of provision at Rural (Otley) and the COVID-19 situation has not prevented this from taking place.
Student numbers have increased significantly at both the Ipswich and Rural campuses. The College
has grown provision at Halesworth and Leiston as part of, on the coast. Having access to these different
campuses across a wider geographic location has enabled the College to diversify provision and to
grow beyond the limited Ipswich facilities can allow within a tight campus. The College has further plans
to continue to grow over the next few years. This provides an opportunity for the College to offer a
broader range of curriculum and to secure a land based agriculture offer for Suffolk. The Rural site has
more capacity than has been to date utilised, and the College has already started to implement plans
to grow and enhance the current provision offered.

The College was successful with a bid for LEP funding of £1.6million to build Tech Campus, a Digital
and Technology Skills Hub to enhance the offering available to be able to meet the future needs of local
digital industries. The building was built throughout 20/21 and opened for students in September 2021.
This will introduce new funding streams and more 16-18 provision into the College.

The College is also a T-Level pilot provider and rolled out the first T Level in Construction in 20/21,
followed by further T-levels being introduced in the following years. Again, this introduces new funding
streams into the College and enhances the students' choice of learner pathways.
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The College has been successful with capital funding to support the T Level developments and a
significant proportion of FECDC capital funding towards necessary maintenance works across the sites.
This has been targeted for the Rural site which is an older campus which has suffered with lack of
investment over a number of years.

After making appropriate enquiries, the Corporation considers that the College has adequate resources
to continue in operational existence for at least the 12-month period following the date of signature of
these accounts. For this reason, it continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial
statements.

Disclosure of Information to Auditor

The members who held office at-the date of approval of this report confirm, that, so far as they are each
aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the College's auditors are unaware; and each
member has taken all the steps he or she ought to have taken to be aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the College's auditors is aware of that information.

Approved by order of the members of the Corporation on 15 December 2021 and signed on Its
behalf by:

S Pugh

Chair
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The following statement is provided to enable readers of the financial statements of the College to
obtain a better understanding of its governance and legal structure. This statement covers the period
from 1 August 2020 to 31 July 2021 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial
statements.

The College endeavours to conduct its business:

I. in accordance with the seven principles identified by the Committee on Standards in Public Life
(selflessness, integrity, objectivity, accountability, openness, honesty and leadership);

II. in full accordance with the guidance to colleges from the Association of Colleges in The Code
of Good Governance for English Colleges adopted in 2015 ("the Code");

The Corporation recognises that, as a body entrusted with both public and private funds, it has a
particular duty to observe the highest standards of corporate governance at all times.

In carrying out its responsibilities, it takes account of the Code ofGood Governance for English Colleges
issued by the Association of Colleges, which it formally adopted on 16 July 2015. In the opinion of the
members of the Corporation, the College complies with all the provisions of the Code, and it has
complied throughout the year ended 31 July 2021.

This opinion is based on an external review of compliance with the Code reported to the Corporation
undertaken by Scrutton Bland, the College's risk assurance advisors and reported to Corporation on 25
March 2021.

During the exceptional COVID-19 pandemic period, the Corporation moved immediately to virtual
meetings, which meant that there was no interruption to the business of Corporation. All of the
scheduled committees and their normal business were able to take place, and Corporation was well
placed to provide additional support to the College Senior Managers and Executive Team during this
period.

The Corporation

The members who served on the Corporation during the year and up to the date of signature of this
report were as listed in the table below.

Name of Date of Term Date of Status of Committees Mtgs %
Member Appointment of Finish appointment served during Att.

office 2020/21
Ms A Beech 28 March 2013 4 - Member Corporation; 5 83

(reappointed Years Search (Chair); 2 100
March 2021) Remuneration 2 100

(Chair): 4 80
Audit & Risk. 2 100
Academic
Standards &
Quality

MsH 28 January 4 - Member Corporation 2 66
Clements 2021 Years Academic 1 50

Standards &
Quality

Mr M Cole 22 July 2010 4 - Member Corporation; 5 83
(reappointed Years 5 83
July 2018)
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Finance &
Employment.{Cha 2 100
ir)
Remuneration

Mr R 11 June 2020 4 Member Corporation 6 100
England Years Academic

Standards & 2 100
Quality

Mr R Fern 1 August 2012 4 27 April Member Corporation 3 75
{Chair until (reappointed Years 2021 Finance & 4 100
10 December July 2020) Employment;
2020then Search; 1 100
Vice Chair) Remuneration. 2 100

Academic 1 100
Standards &
Quality

Mrs V Appointed - - Principal Corporation; 6 100
Gillespie Principal 1 Finance & 6 100

July 2015 Employment;
Search. 2 100
Academic 2 100
Standards &
Quality

Mrs A 11 June 2020 4 Member Corporation 6 100
Gordon Years Finance & 5 83

Employment
MrD 9 November 1 Year 31 July Student Corporation 3 60
Jermacenko 2020 2021 Member Search o o
Mr B Keaney 28 January 4 - Member Corporation 3 100

2021 Years Academic 2 100
Standards &
Quality

Mr C Leggett 1 August 2018 4 16 Member Corporation; o o
Years November Finance & o o

2020 Employment

Mr JLegh 1August 2018 4 - Member Corporation; 6 100
Smith Years Audit & Risk 5 100

(Chair)
Remuneration 1 1

Dr M Lyne 16 July 2015 4 - Member Corporation 6 100
(reappointed Years Academic 2 100
July 2019) Standards &

Quality (Chair)
Remuneration

Ms J Martin 27 March 2014 4 - Member Corporation; 6 100
(reappointed Years Audit & Risk 5 100
March 2018) Academic 2 100

Standards &
Quality
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Mr A Prickett 26 November 4 - Member Corporation; 3 50
2015 Years Audit & Risk 4 80
(reappointed
November
2019)

Mr S Pugh 12 May 2011 4 - Member Corporation; 6 100
Vice Chair (reappointed Years Finance & 6 100
until 10 May 2019) Employment
December Remuneration 2 100
2020 then Search
Chair) Academic 4 100

Standards & 2 100
Quality

Mrs T Rose- 1 August 2019 4 12 August Staff Member Corporation; 6 100
Porter Years 2021 Search 2 100

Mr S 28 January 4 - Member Corporation 3 100
Sheppard 2021 Years Academic 4 50

Standards &
Quality

Mr J 1 August 2018 4 12 October Member Corporation; o o
Stephenson Years 2020
Mr C Warnes 17 December 4 - Member Corporation; 6 100

2015 Years Audit & Risk 4 80
(reappointed
December
2019)

Co-opted Members

At no time were those listed below full members of the Corporation.

Name Date of Term Date of Committee Att %
Appointment of Termination

Office

Mrs S Beavis 20 December 4 7 March Co-opted Audit & Risk N/A N/A
2011 Years 2019 ( date
(reappointed of last
December committee
2019) attended)

Mr M Cooper 1 August 2018 4 - Co-opted Finance & Employment 6 100
Years

Mr S Flory 24 January 4 - Co-opted Search 4 50
(Presiding 2019 Years
Ambassador)
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The Clerk to the Corporation until 28 May 2021 was Mr Dennis McGarry, Anden Consultancy Limited, a
limited company registered under the Companies Acts, of which Mr McGarry is a Director.

The Clerk to the Corporation from 1 June 21 was Ms Rachel Robson, Rachel Robson Suffolk Limited, a
limited company registered under the Companies Acts, of which Ms Robson is a Director

It is the Corporation's responsibility to bring independent judgement to bear on issues of strategy,
performance, resources and standards of conduct.

The Corporation is provided with regular and timely information on the overall financial performance of
the College together with other information such as performance against funding targets, proposed
capital expenditure, quality matters and personnel-related matters such as health and safety,
safeguarding, and environmental issues. The Corporation meets at least once each term.

The Corporation conducts its business through a number of committees. Each committee has terms of
reference, which has been approved by the Corporation. These committees are Finance and
Employment, Remuneration, Search, and Audit and Risk.

Full minutes of all meetings, except those deemed confidential by the Corporation, are posted on the
College website at www.suffolk.ac.uk or from the Clerk to the Corporation at:

Suffolk New College
Ipswich
Suffolk
IP4 1LT

The Clerk to the Corporation maintains a register of financial and personal interests of the members of
the Corporation. The register is available for inspection at the above address and on the College
website.
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All members of the Corporation are able to take independent professional advice in furtherance of their
duties at the College's expense and have access to the Clerk to the Corporation, who is responsible to
the Corporation for ensuring that all applicable procedures and regulations are complied with. The
appointment, evaluation and removal of the Clerk are matters for the Corporation as a whole.

Formal agendas, papers and reports are supplied to members of the Corporation in a timely manner,
prior to Board meetings. Briefings are also provided on an ad hoc basis. The Corporation has a strong
and independent non-executive element and no individual or group dominates its decision-making
process.

The Corporation considers that each of its non-executive members is independent of management and
free from any business or other relationship which could materially interfere with the exercise of their
independent judgement.

There is a clear division of responsibility in that the roles of the Chairman and Accounting Officer are
separate.

Appointments to the Corporation

Any new appointments to the Corporation are a matter for the consideration of the Corporation as a
whole. The Corporation has a Search Committee, consisting of up to seven members of the
Corporation, which is responsible for the selection and nomination of any new member for the
Corporation's consideration. The Corporation is responsible for ensuring that appropriate training is
provided as required. Members of the Corporation are normally appointed for a term of office not
exceeding four years.

Corporation performance

The Corporation carried out a self-evaluation exercise of its own performance for the year ended 31
July 2021 and graded itself as "Good" on the Ofsted scale the outcomes were reported to Corporation
at its October 2021 meeting.

Remuneration Committee

Throughout the year ending 31 July 2021 the College's Remuneration Committee comprised of five
members of the Corporation. The Committee's responsibilities are to make recommendations to the
Corporation on the remuneration and benefits of the Accounting Officer and other key management
personnel.

The College has adopted the AoC's Senior Staff Remuneration Code and this is published on the
College's website.

Details of remuneration for the year ended 31 July 2021 are set out in note 9 to the financial statements.
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Audit and Risk Committee

The Audit and Risk Committee comprises five members of the Corporation (excluding the Accounting
Officer and Chair). The Committee operates in accordance with written terms of reference approved by
the Corporation.

The Audit and Risk Committee meets at least once a term and provides a forum for reporting by the
College's risk assurance advisors, reporting accountants and financial statements auditors, who have
access to the Committee for independent discussion, without the presence of College management.
The Committee also receives and considers reports from the main FE funding bodies as they affect the
College's business.

The College's internal auditors, Scrutton Bland LLP review the systems of internal control, risk
management controls and governance processes in accordance with an agreed plan of input and report
their findings to management and the Audit and Risk Committee.

Management is responsible for the implementation of agreed internal control recommendations and the
College's risk assurance advisors undertake periodic follow-up reviews to ensure such
recommendations have been implemented.

The Audit and Risk Committee also advises the Corporation on the appointment of risk assurance
advisors, reporting accountants and financial statements auditors and their remuneration for audit and
non-audit work as well as reporting annually to the Corporation.

The audit committee met 5 times in the year to 31 July 2021. The members of the committee and their
attendance records are show below.

Committee member

Ms A Beech

Mr J Legh-Smith (Chair)

Ms J Martin

Mr A Prickett

Mr CWarnes

Finance and Employment Committee

Meetings attended

4

5

5

4

4

The Finance and Employment Committee comprises of seven members including the Chair of
Corporation, the Principal and a co-opted member.

The Finance and Employment Committee normally meets six times a year and formulate guidelines for
(and advises the Corporation on) its oversight of the discharge of the Corporation's responsibilities for
the proper management of the resources and assets of the College.
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It is the responsibility of the Finance and Employment Committee to make recommendations to the
Corporation on the strategy for:

• Financial management;
• Annual estimates of income and expenditure;
• Fees and charges;
• Conditions of service (except for those of the Senior Post Holders);
• All human resources matters excluding those for Senior Post Holders;
• Health and safety.

The Committee also monitors the achievement of financial performance indicators and advises the
Corporation accordingly. It considers monthly management accounts; annual financial statements; and
budgets and financial regulations prior to the recommendation for Corporation approval.

Search Committee

The Search Committee comprises of up to seven members including the Chair of Corporation, the Vice
Chair of Corporation*, the Principal, the Staff Member, the Student Governor, the Presiding
Ambassador and one other member (vacancy). The Search Committee normally meets three times a
year.

(*This would normally be the case unless the Vice Chair is Chair of another standing committee other
than Remuneration. The Search Committee carried out its duties with six members from 1 August 2020
to 31July 2021 ).

The purpose of the Search Committee is to advise Corporation on the appointment and reappointment
of Members of the Corporation including:

• to determine the process whereby candidates for consideration for Corporation Membership
are nominated;

• to advise the Corporation on such matters relating to membership and appointments as the
Corporation may remit;

• to evaluate the contribution made by existing individual Members before proposing any re
appointment to the Corporation;

• to monitor the skills and experience of Corporation Members to identify desired areas of
expertise to be sought in the appointment of new Members;

• to determine and monitor the Corporation Member Training and Development Policy;

• to advise the Corporation on the appointment of co-opted non-Corporation members to
Corporation Committees.

The Search Committee also advises the Corporation on governance issues including the annual self
evaluation of Governance and monitoring the associated action plans; Corporation and Committee
structure and Members; Standing Orders and the Code of Conduct.
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Academic Scrutiny Committee

This was previously a non-Corporation meeting attended by Governors, but it was formalised as a full
Corporation Committee from November 2020. It comprises of 10 governors who link to key priority
themes of the College and they carry out learning walks, lesson observations and interrogate data
showing attendance, retention and achievement. These governors provide an essential link into the
main Corporation meetings where all governors have an opportunity to receive student data and subject
it to scrutiny and challenge.

There are specific governors nominated as the College's Safeguarding Governors who attend Strategic
Safeguarding Meetings, but reports on safeguarding are presented to all Governors at Corporation at
each meeting. There is also a lead Governor for Health & Safety who attends the College's Strategic
Health & Safety Meetings.

Internal control

Scope of responsibility

The Corporation is ultimately responsible for the College's system of internal control and for reviewing
its effectiveness. However, such a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

The Corporation has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Principal, as Accounting Officer, for
maintaining a sound system of internal control that supports the achievement of the College's policies,
aims and objectives, whilst safeguarding the public funds and assets for which they are personally
responsible, in accordance with the responsibilities assigned to them in the Financial Memorandum
between Suffolk New College and the funding bodies. The Accounting Officer is also responsible for
reporting to the Corporation any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate
all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going
process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of College policies, aims and
objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be
realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. The system of internal control
has been in place in Suffolk NewCollege for the year ended 31 July 2021 and up to the date of approval
of the annual report and accounts.

Capacity to handle risk

The Corporation has reviewed the key risks to which the College is exposed together with the operating,
financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Corporation
is of the view that there is a formal on-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing the
College's significant risks that has been in place for the year ended 31 July 2021 and up to the date of
approval of the annual report and accounts. This process is regularly reviewed by the Corporation.
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The risk and control framework

The system of internal control is based on a framework of regular management information,
administrative procedures including the segregation of duties, and a system of delegation and
accountability. In particular, it includes:

• comprehensive budgeting systems with an annual budget, which is reviewed and agreed by the
Corporation;

• regular reviews by the Corporation of periodic and annual financial reports which indicate financial
performance against forecasts;

• setting targets to measure financial and other performance;
• clearly defined capital investment control guidelines;
• the adoption of formal project management disciplines, where appropriate.

Suffolk New College's arrangement with Scrutton Bland LLP commenced during the year ended 31 July
2021. For that year along with Scrutton Bland LLP, the College Management and Members of the
Corporation have assessed the internal controls and developed a broad assurance framework, clearly
showing the mapping of assurance sources against the risks identified.

The College analysed the risks to which it was exposed and a programme of assurance was agreed
with the Audit & Risk Committee. The Committee was provided with regular reports on this assurance
activity in the College which included:

• GDPR
• Key Financial Controls - Cash Management and Income and Debtors
• Curriculum Planning
• Governance and Risk Management

The College's Corporation have taken actions in response to the current COVID-19 pandemic to change
the way that they meet and interact with the College but also to work with College Management to
scrutinise the arrangements they have put in place to safeguard the students and staff attending College.
Corporation Meetings and Governor visits are now taking place virtually. The Corporation has received
confirmation of the following measures put in place by management:

• Additional cleaning, including significant investment into new equipment, and fogging taking
place at the two main sites;

• No external visitors or suppliers allowed on site;
• Face coverings to be worn in communal areas, and the majority of teaching spaces;
• PPE and hand sanitisers provided across the college and in all teaching spaces;
• On site Test Centres as people returned to site, and then moved to twice weekly at home lateral

flow testing;
• One-way systems in operation, along with up and down staircases at Ipswich which is where

the majority of the people are working;
• Reducing the number of people on site where possible so that they work from home or in other

locations;
• Mitigating the spread amongst teams and people carrying out the same role, by splitting them

up so that they are not physically working together;
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• Virtual meetings rather than face to face meetings at all levels. and specifically management
level meetings to manage the risk of all of the team being unwell;

• Plans in place for the delivery of services remotely both teaching and operational services.
proven by what was possible over the lockdown, and then refined in plans ready to be
implemented again if another lockdown occurs;

• Guidance for staff and students;
• Procedures in place for anyone showing symptoms;
• A wide-range of resources available virtually to support students who are needing to learn

remotely;
• The ability for staff to access IT and phone systems to facilitate their ability to continue to work

remotely, where this is necessary and appropriate;
• Tracking of staff and students who are on self-isolation or awaiting results;
• Risk management plans in place, and protocols for all of the College's main processes;
• Personal Risk Assessment approach for the clinically vulnerable to support their ability to

continue with their studies or working safely.

Risks faced by the Corporation

The Corporation is fully aware of the College's risks as set out in the Risk Management Plan, which is
scrutinised by Governors. The risks set out in the plan are the key ones facing the College and the
Corporation are continually reviewing these within the specific committees. The Finance & Employment
Committee review risks associated with finance, funding, staff and property. The Search Committee
manage risks associated with changes to the Corporation, and any replacement Governors needed in
key areas. Their oversight of the skills of Corporation is crucial and they have worked during 20/21 on
ensuring that new finance governors have been appointed along with governors with a land based/food
background. The Audit & Risk Committee take overall ownership of the detailed scrutiny of the
College's risk management approach, along with obtaining the professional opinions of advisors to the
Corporation on any areas of the college which are subject to review.

To add to the work of Corporation, the oversight committee of Academic Scrutiny provides the in depth
and deep-dive interrogation of the curriculum and quality at the College, so that Corporation as whole
who receives the performance data, information and tracking, can have reassurance that link governors
have carried out this work.

Link governors are also in place and provide robust challenge and oversight of key the risks in areas
of Health & Safety, and Safeguarding. They attend relevant committees and scrutinise the plans and
procedures in place related to these key operational areas which Governors have responsibility in.

Control Weaknesses

No internal control weaknesses or failures have arisen in 20/21. No actions have then subsequently
been taken.

Responsibilities under funding agreements

The Corporation has determined that the College has met its contractual responsibilities as required by
the funding agreements and contracts in place with the ESFA.
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Statement from the audit committee

The audit and risk committee has advised that the Corporation has an effective framework for
governance and risk management in place. The audit and risk committee believes the Corporation has
effective internal controls in place.

Scrutton Bland LLP, internal auditors, provided an opinion in their Internal Audit Plan Report:

'In our opinion, for the year ended 31 July 2021 the College:

• Has adequate and effective risk management processes
• Has adequate and effective governance processes
• Has adequate and effective control processes, and
• Has adequate and effective processes surrounding efficiency and effectiveness.

Scrutton Bland LLP completed six assignment reports and a follow-up report during 2020/21
academic year. They provided one strong, five significant, one reasonable and one limited assurance
opinion. It should be noted that two of the audits contained two assurance levels.

The specific areas of work undertaken by the audit committee in 2020/21 and up to the date of the
approval of the financial statements are:

• Oversight of any fraud or irregularity - these are received in reports to the committee and
nothing was reported in 20/21 which required any action and the Committee was satisfied to
receive further details on actions taken to avoid these areas of risks being an issue to the
College, including the regular training of staff, and the sharing of intelligence from other colleges
and information received from the College's bank.

• College Risk Management Plan
• Subcontracting Audit - the assurance opinion was 'strong' which means that governance, risk

management and control arrangements provide strong assurance that the material risks
reviewed are managed effectively. No risk actions were identified that needed to be addressed.

• High Needs Learner Support - the assurance opinion was 'significant' which means that
governance, risk management and control arrangements provide strong assurance that the
material risks reviewed are managed effectively. One medium risk action was identified.

• Risk Management - the assurance opinion was 'significant' which means that governance, risk
management and control arrangements provide strong assurance that the material risks
reviewed are managed effectively. One low risk action and four added value points were
identified.

• Governance- the assurance opinion was 'significant' which means that governance, risk
management and control arrangements provide strong assurance that the material risks
reviewed are managed effectively. One low risk action was identified.

• Health & Safety including COVID19 response - the assurance opinion was 'significant' which
means that governance, risk management and control arrangements provide strong assurance
that the material risks reviewed are managed effectively. Four low risk actions were identified.

• Funding Assurance - classroom based - the assurance opinion was 'significant' which means
that governance, risk management and control arrangements provide strong assurance that
the material risks reviewed are managed effectively. One low risk action was identified.

• Key Financial Controls - the assurance opinion was 'reasonable' which means that governance,
risk management and control arrangements provide reasonable assurance that the material
risks reviewed are managed effectively. Two medium risk actions and one low risk action was
identified.
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• Funding Assurance - apprenticeships - the assurance opinion was 'limited' which means that
governance, risk management and control arrangements provide limited assurance that the
material risks reviewed are managed effectively. Two high risk actions and one low risk action
was identified and these were immediately addressed by the College.

• Follow-up of previous recommendations - the assurance opinion was that good progress had
been made.

All of the risk actions were immediately tracked and dates agreed for when they will be completed. The
majority were completed during 20/21.

Review of effectiveness

As Accounting Officer, the Principal has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of
internal control. Their review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is informed by:

• the work of the advisors, Scrutton Bland LLP;
• the work of the executive managers within the College who have responsibility for the

development and maintenance of the internal control framework;
• comments made by the College's financial statements auditors and the reporting accountant

for regularity assurance in their management letters and other reports.

The Accounting Officer has been advised on the implications of the result of the review of the
effectiveness of the system of internal control by the Audit and Risk Committee, which oversees the
sources of assurance, and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the
system is in place.

The Executive Team receives reports setting out key performance and risk indicators and considers
possible control issues brought to their attention by early warning mechanisms, which are embedded
within the departments and reinforced by risk awareness training. These are shared with Governors
along with the actions being taken. The Executive Team and Audit and Risk Committee also receive
regular reports from advisors and other sources of assurance, which include recommendations for
improvement. The Audit and Risk Committee's role in this area is confined to a high-level review of the
arrangements for internal control. The Corporations agenda includes a regular item for consideration
of risk and control and receives reports thereon from the Executive Tearn and the Audit and Risk
Committee. The emphasis is on obtaining the relevant degree of assurance and not merely reporting
by exception. At its October 2021 meeting, the Corporation carried out the annual assessment for the
year ended 31 July 2021 by considering documentation from the Executive Team and advisors, and
taking account of events since 31 July 2021.
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Based on the advice of the Audit and Risk Committee and the Accounting Officer, the Corporation is of
the opinion that the College has an adequate and effective framework for governance, riskmanagement
and control, and has fulfilled its statutory responsibility for "the effective and efficient use of resources,
the solvency of the institution and the body and the safeguarding of their assets".

Approved by order of the members of the Corporation on 15 December 2021 and signed on its
behalf by:

S Pugh
Chair

V A Gillespie
Accounting Officer
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The Corporation has considered its responsibility to notify the Education and Skills Funding Agency
(ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance with terms and conditions of funding,
under the college's grant funding agreements and contracts with the ESFA. As part of our consideration
we have had due regard to the requirements of the grant funding agreements and contracts with the
ESFA.

We confirm, on behalf of the Corporation, that after due enquiry, and to the best of our knowledge, we
are able to identify any material irregular or improper use of funds by the College, or material non
compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the College's grant funding agreements and
contract with ESFA.

We confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been
discovered to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified
to the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

Approved by order of the members of the Corporation on 15 December 2021 and signed on its
behalf by:

S Pugh
Chair

V A Gillespie
Accounting Officer
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The members of the Corporation who act as trustees for the charitable activities of the College are
required to present audited financial statements for each financial year.

The law applicable to charities in England and the terms and conditions of the Funding Agreement
between the Education and Skills Funding Agency and the Corporation of the College, requires the
corporation of the college to prepare financial statements and the Members Report for each financial
year in accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice - Accounting for Further and Higher
Education Institutions the annual Accounts Direction issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency,
and in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom
Accounting Standards) and which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the College and of
the College's deficit of income over expenditure for that period.

In preparing the financial statements, the corporation is required to:

• select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently
• make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent
• state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material

departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements
• assess whether the corporation is a going concern, noting the key supporting assumptions

qualifications or mitigating actions as appropriate
• prepare financial statements on the going concern basis, unless it is inappropriate to assume

that the College will continue in operation.

The Corporation is responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose, with reasonable
accuracy, at any time, the financial position of the College, and enable it to ensure that the financial
statements are prepared in accordance with the Charities Act 2011 and other relevant accounting
standards. It is responsible for taking steps in order to safeguard the assets of the College and to
prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

The maintenance and integrity of the College website is the responsibility of the Corporation of the
College; the work carried out by the auditors does not involve consideration of these matters and,
accordingly, the auditors accept no responsibility for any changes that may have occurred to the
financial statements since they were initially presented on the website. Legislation in the United
Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation
in other jurisdictions.
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Members of the Corporation are responsible for ensuring that funds from the Education and Skills
Funding Agency are used only in accordance with the authorities that govern them, as defined by and
in accordance with Further & Higher Education Act 1992, subsequent legislation and related regulations
and the Funding Agreement with the Education and Skills Funding Agency and any other conditions
that may be prescribed from time to time. Members of the corporation must ensure that there are
appropriate financial and management controls in place to safeguard public and other funds and ensure
they are used properly. In addition, members of the corporation are responsible for securing economical,
efficient and effective management of the corporation's resources and expenditure so that the benefits
that should be derived from the application of public funds from the ESFA and other public bodies are
not put at risk.

Approved by order of the members of the Corporation on 15 December 2021 and signed on its
behalf by:

S Pugh
Chair
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Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Suffolk New College (the "College") for the year ended 31
July 2021 which comprise the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of financial position,
the statement of changes in reserves, the statement of cash flows and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been
applied in their preparation is United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 102 "The Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland" (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice).

In our opinion the financial statements:

• give a true and fair view of the state of the College's affairs as at 31 July 2021 and of the College's
surplus of income over expenditure for the year then ended; and

• have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of
the College in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the governors' use of the going concern
basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the college's ability
to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements
are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the governors with respect to going concern are described
in the relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the Report and Financial Statements other
than the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The governors are responsible for the
other information contained within the Report and Financial Statements. Our opinion on the financial
statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.
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Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
course of the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives
rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If , based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Post-16 Audit Code of Practice
2020 to 201 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency requires us to report to you if, in our
opinion:

• adequate accounting records have not been kept;

• the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records; or

• we have not received all the information and explanations required for our audit.

Responsibilities of the Corporation of Suffolk New College

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities of the Members of the Corporation set out
on pages 38 to 39, the Corporation is responsible for the preparation of financial statements and for
being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Corporation
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Corporation is responsible for assessing the College's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the Corporation either intend to liquidate the College or
to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.
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The extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

Irregularities are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. The objectives of our audit
are to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding compliance with laws and regulations that
have a direct effect on the determination of material amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
to perform audit procedures to help identify instances of non-compliance with other laws and regulations
that may have a material effect on the financial statements, and to respond appropriately to identified
or suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations identified during the audit.

In relation to fraud, the objectives of our audit are to identify and assess the risk of material misstatement
of the financial statements due to fraud, to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
assessed risks of material misstatement due to fraud through designing and implementing appropriate
responses and to respond appropriately to fraud or suspected fraud identified during the audit.

However, it is the primary responsibility of management, with the oversight of those charged with
governance, to ensure that the entity's operations are conducted in accordance with the provisions of
laws and regulations and for the prevention and detection of fraud.

In identifying and assessing risks of material misstatement in respect of irregularities, including fraud,
the audit engagement team:

• obtained an understanding of the nature of the sector, including the legal and regulatory
frameworks that the College operates in and how the college are complying with the legal and
regulatory frameworks;

• inquired of management, and those charged with governance, about their own identification
and assessment of the risks of irregularities, including any known actual, suspected or alleged
instances of fraud;

• discussed matters about non-compliance with laws and regulations and how fraud might occur
including assessment of how and where the financial statements may be susceptible to fraud.

As a result of these procedures we consider the most significant laws and regulations that have a direct
impact on the financial statements are FRS 102, Further and Higher Education SORP, the College
Accounts Direction published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency and tax compliance
regulations. We performed audit procedures to detect non-compliances which may have a material
impact on the financial statements which included reviewing financial statement statements including
the Report of the Governing Body, remaining alert to new or unusual transactions which may not be in
accordance with the governing documents and inquiring of management whether the College is in
compliance with these law and regulations.

The most significant laws and regulations that have an indirect impact on the financial statements are
those which are in relation to the Education Inspection Framework under the Education and Inspections
Act 2006, Keeping Children Safe in Education under the Education Act 2002 and the UK General Data
Protection Regulation (UK GDPR) and the Data Protection Act 2018. We performed audit procedures
to inquire of management and those charged with governance whether the College is in
compliance with these law and regulations and inspected correspondence with licensing or
regulatory authorities.

The audit engagement team identified the risk of management override of controls as the areas where
the financial statements were most susceptible to material misstatement due to fraud. Audit procedures
performed included but were not limited to testing manual journal entries and other adjustments and
evaluating the business rationale in relation to significant, unusual transactions and transactions
entered into outside the normal course of business, challenging judgments and estimates.
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A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the
Financial Reporting Council's website at http_//wyyy_frc_org_uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description
forms part of our auditor's report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Corporation, as a body, in accordance with the Funding Agreement
published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency and our engagement letter dated 21 October
2021. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Corporation, as a body, those
matters we are engaged to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Corporation,
as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

SHI 0 udu- UP

RSM UK AUDIT LLP
Chartered Accountants
Blenheim House
Newmarket Road
Bury St Edmunds
Suffolk

IP33 3SB

Date 20 Decale/o2l
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Notes 2021 2020
£'000 £'000

INCOME
Funding body grants 3 23,123 19,629
Tuition fees and education contracts 4 2,468 2,178
Other grants and contracts 5 161 474
Other income 6 780 976
Investment income 7 2 65
Donations - transfer on merger of Otley College 28 2,946 9,068
Donations - non-current assets 29 116
Total income 29,596 32,390

EXPENDITURE
Staff costs 9 18,175 15,171
Other operating expenses 10 5,501 4,874
Exceptional costs of merger 9&10 5 403
Depreciation and Amortisation 13&14 2,548 2,345
Interest and other finance costs 11 490 444
Total expenditure 26,719 23,237

Surplus/(deficit) before other gains and losses 2,877 9,153
Profit on disposal of assets 19 (6)
Surplus/(deficit) before tax 2,896 9,147

Taxation 12

Surplus/(deficit) for the year 2,896 9,147

Remeasurement of defined benefit liability 25 (228) (3,924)
Remeasurement of enhanced pension liability 20 (191)
Total comprehensive income for the year 2,668 5,032

Represented by
Restricted comprehensive income for the year
Unrestricted comprehensive income for the year 2,668 5,032

2,668 5,032

All items of income and expenditure relate to continuing activities.
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Notes 2021 2020
£'000 £'000

Non-current assets
Intangible fixed assets 13 77 78
Tangible fixed assets 14 64,241 64,584
Investments 15 10 10

64,328 64,672

Current assets
Stocks 87 104
Trade and other receivables 16 4,792 2,298
Cash and cash equivalents 7,429 4,730

12,308 7,132
Less: Creditors - amounts falling due within one year 17 (6,668) (4,574)

Net current assets 5,640 2,558

Total assets less current liabilities 69,968 67,230
Creditors - amounts falling due after more than one year 18 (34,603) (35,750)
Provisions for liabilities
Defined benefit obligations 20& 25 (12,608) (11,247)
Other provisions 20 (1,871) (2,015)

Total net assets 20,886 18,218

Restricted reserves
Endowment reserve 32 32
Total restricted reserves 32 32

Unrestricted reserves
Income and expenditure account 19,827 17,159
Revaluation reserve 1,027 1,027
Total unrestricted reserves 20,854 18,186

Total reserves 20,886 18,218

The financial statements on pages 44 to 75 were approved and authorised for issue by the Corporation on 15
December 2021 and were signed on its behalf on that date by:

S Pugh
Chair

V A Gillespie
Accounting Officer
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Income and Expenditure
Reserve

Restricted Unrestricted

Revaluation
Reserve Total

Balance at 1 August 2019

Surplus/ (deficit) for the year
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance at 31 July 2020

Surplus/(deficit) for the year
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance at 31July 2021

£'000

32

32

32

£'000

12,127

9,147
(4,115)
5,032

17,159

2,896
(228)

2,668

19,827

£'000

1,027

1,027

1,027

£'000

13,186

9,147
(4,115)
5,032

18,218

2,896
(228)

2,668

20,886
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Notes 2021 2020
£'O00 £'000

Cash flow from operating activities
Surplus/(deficit) for the year 2,896 9,147
Adjustment for non-cash items
Depreciation 2,548 2,345
Decrease/(increase) in stocks 17 (79)
Decrease/(increase) in debtors 452 (499)
(Decrease)/increase in creditors due within one year 281 1,047
(Decrease)/increase in creditors due after one year (778) (1,071)
(Decrease)/increase in provisions (144) (99)
Pensions costs less contributions payable 1,133 634
Donations transfer on merger of Otley College (2,946) (9,068)
Donations laptops from ESFA (116)
Adjustment for investing or financing activities
Investment income (2) (65)
Interest payable 314 302
(Profit)/Loss on sale of fixed assets (19) 6
Net cash flow from operating activities 3,636 2,600

Cash flows from investing activities
Investment income 2 65
Cash used to settle Otley College debt pre-merger (1,354)
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets 37 1
Capital grants received 1,775 170
Cash received following merger with Otley College 28 204
Payments made to acquire fixed assets (2,107) (719)

(265) (1,633)

Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid (314) (302)
Repayments of amounts borrowed {358) (345)

(672) (647)

Increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents in the year 2,699 320

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 21 4,730 4,410

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 21 7,429 4,730
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1. Accounting Policies

General Information

Suffolk New College is a Corporation established under the Further and Higher Education Act 1992 as
an English general college offurther education. The address of the College's principal place of business
is given on page 1. The nature of the College's operations is set out in the Members' Report.

Basis of accounting

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Statement of Recommended
Practice: Accounting for Further and Higher Education 2019 (F & HE SORP 2019), the College
Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021 and in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard FRS102 - "The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and Republic of Ireland" (FRS102)
under the historical cost convention. The College is a public benefit entity and has therefore applied
the relevant public benefit requirements of FRS102.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

The financial statements are presented in sterling, which is also the functional currency of the College.

Monetary amounts in these financial statements are rounded to the nearestwhole £1,000, except where
otherwise indicated.

Going Concern

The activities of the College, together with the factors likely to affect its future development and
performance are set out in the Members Report. The financial position of the College, its cash flow,
liquidity and borrowings are described in the Financial Statements and accompanying Notes.

The College currently has £7 .081 million of long-term unsecured loans in place with Barclays Bank
under a facility put in place during 2008 as part of the funding for the college's new building. These
loans are repayable by instalments over the period up to 2035. The college's forecasts and financial
projections indicate that it will be able to operate within this existing facility and covenants for at least
the 12 months following sign off of these Financial Statements.

The uncertainty with the economy and the ongoing COVID-19 situation has resulted in the budget
position for 20/21 and 21/22 being subject to volatility. Regular reporting to Governors throughout the
year is a priority, and the Senior Management Team will be responsive and take actions as appropriate.
A number of Government backed funding opportunities have arisen, which the College will actively
pursue, alongside realising staff efficiencies as appropriate. The situation continues to be closely
monitored on a monthly basis, and projections are changed as appropriate. These are formally reported
to Corporation on at least a quarterly basis, but all reports are made available to Governors on a monthly
basis. Regular cash flow projections (up to July 2022), with an accompanying commentary, are made
available to the ESFA and are approved by Governors.
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At no point did the College consider that the bank covenants in place with Barclays were at risk as a
result of the COVID-19 situation. These were carefully monitored but they were not considered to be
at risk of being breached during 20/21, and there is also no indication that there is any risk to them for
21/22.

The Corporation have scrutinised budget plans for the next two years and challenged assumptions
regarding income and expenditure. The College's management have planned for different scenarios
and shared these with Governors. These along with the College's Risk Management Plan have assured
Corporation on the future of the College.

Accordingly, the College has a reasonable expectation that it has adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for at least the 12 months following sign off of these Financial Statements, and
for this reason will continue to adopt the going concern basis in the preparation of its Financial
Statements.

Recognition of income

Grants - government and non-government

Revenue Grant Funding

Government revenue grants are accounted for under the accrual model and are recognised where a
reliable estimate of the fair value of the asset received or receivable can be made on a systematic basis
over the periods in which the related costs for which the grant compensates are recognised.

Adult Education Budget ('AEB') grant funding income recognised is a best estimate of the amount
receivable in accordance with the annual main funding guidance published by the ESFA and either
determined as part of the reconciliation process or by separate agreement between the College and
the ESFA at the reporting period end date. Any subsequent agreement to determination of the AEB
funding after the reporting end date, which is not provided for in the annual main funding guidance, is
not reflected in the income recognised.

16-18 learner responsive funding is not normally subject to reconciliation and is therefore not subject to
contract adjustments and is recognised when receivable.

Levy-funded and ESFA funding for the co-investment model apprenticeships income is measured in
line with best estimates of the provision delivered in the year.

Grants from non-government sources, including grants relating to assets, are recognised in income
when the performance-related conditions have been met and the grant will be received. Income
received in advance of performance related conditions being met is recognised as a liability.
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Capital grant Funding - government grants

Government capital grants for assets, other than land, are accounted for under the accrual model and
for land the performance model. The grant income received or receivable will be recognised over the
expected useful life of the asset, with any amount of the asset-related grant that is deferred being
recognised as deferred income. The deferred income is allocated between creditors due within one
year and those due after more than one year. Government capital grants for land are recognised in
income when the performance related conditions have been met.

Other income

Income from the supply of services is recognised at fair value of the consideration received or receivable
and represents the value of services to the extent there is a right to consideration.

Income from tuition fees, including employer funding for co-investment funded apprenticeships is
recognised over the period for which it is received. All income from short-term deposits is credited to
the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period in which it is earned on a receivable basis.

The College acts as an agent in the collection and payment of certain discretionary support funds and
Apprenticeship Employer Incentive Payments. Related payments received from the funding bodies and
subsequent disbursements to students or employers are excluded from the income and expenditure of
the College where the College is exposed to minimal risk or enjoys minimal economic benefit related to
the transaction.

Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits to employees of the College are principally provided by the Teachers' Pension
Scheme (TPS) and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS), which are multi-employer defined
benefit plans.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme. Contributions to the TPS are calculated so as to spread the cost of
pensions over employees' working lives with the College in such a way that the pension cost is a
substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are
determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of valuations using a projected unit method. The
TPS is a multi-employer scheme but sufficient information is not available to use defined benefit
accounting and therefore it is accounted for as a defined contribution scheme, with the amount charged
to the Statement of Comprehensive Income being the contributions payable in the year. Differences
between contributions payable in the year and contributions actually paid are shown as either accruals
or prepayments.

The LGPS is a funded scheme, and the assets of the scheme are held separately. Pension schemes
are measured at fair value and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit
credit method. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at each balance
sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the current service costs and the costs of
scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff
costs. The net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset is charged to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and included within finance costs. Re-measurement comprising actuarial gains
and losses and the return on scheme assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability) are recognised immediately in other comprehensive income.
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Short Term Employment Benefits

Short-term employment benefits such as salaries and compensated absences (holiday pay) are
recognised as an expense in the year in which the employees render service to the College. The cost
of any unused holiday entitlement the College expects to pay in future periods is recognised in the
period the employees' services are rendered.

Enhanced Pensions

The actual cost of any enhanced ongoing pension to a former member of staff is paid by a college
annually. An estimate of the expected future cost of any enhancement to the ongoing pension of a
former member of staff is charged in full to comprehensive income in the year that the member of staff
retires. In subsequent years, a charge is made to provisions in the balance sheet using the enhanced
pension spreadsheet provided by the funding bodies.

Fixed asset investments

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are initially measured at cost, and subsequently measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses.

The College's subsidiary company, Suffolk Educational and Training Company Limited (SETS Limited)
is currently dormant.

Tangible Fixed Assets

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

Land and Buildings

On adoption of FRS102, the College followed the transitional provision to retain the book value of land
which was revalued in 1996, as deemed cost but not to adopt a policy of revaluations of these properties
in the future.

Equipment

Equipment costing less than £1000 per individual item or set of items acquired together is recognised
as expenditure in the period of acquisition. All other equipment is capitalised and recognised at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulate impairment losses.
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Depreciation and residual values

Freehold land is not depreciated as it is considered to have an indefinite useful life. Depreciation on
other assets is calculated, using the straight-line basis, to write off the cost of each asset to its estimated
residual value over its expected useful life, as follows:

• freehold Buildings 40 Years
• Refurbishments - Between 5 years and 40 years depending on their useful economic life to the

College.
• Equipment 5-15 years depending on the nature
• Furniture 10- 15 years depending on the nature
• Fixtures & Fittings 10 years
• Plant & Machinery 10 years

Residual value is calculated on prices prevailing at the reporting date, after estimated costs of disposal,
for the asset as if it were at the age and in the condition expected at the end of its useful life.

Subsequent costs, including replacement parts, are only capitalised when it is probable that such costs
will generate future economic benefits. Any replacement parts are then derecognised. All other costs
of repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred.

Intangible fixed assets

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost, are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation, and accumulated impairment losses. Intangible assets are amortised to the statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over their useful lives, and for purchased computer
software, this is 5 years.

Impairment of fixed assets

An assessment is made at each reporting date of whether there are indications that a fixed asset may
be impaired or that an impairment loss previously recognised has fully or partially reversed. If such
indications exist, an estimate is made of the recoverable amount of the asset.

Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts, being the higher
of fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use, are recognised as impairment losses. Impairment of
revalued assets is treated as a revaluation loss. All other impairment losses are recognised in
comprehensive income.

Recognised impairment losses are reversed if, and only if, the reasons for the impairment loss have
ceased to apply. Reversals of impairment losses are recognised in comprehensive income or, for
revalued assets as a revaluation gain. On reversal of an impairment loss, the depreciation or
amortisation is adjusted to allocate the assets revised carrying amount {less any residual value) over
its remaining useful life.
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Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are recognised as expenditure in the period in which they are incurred.

Assets in the Course of Construction

Assets in the course of construction are accounted for at cost, based on architect's certificates and
other direct costs incurred to 31 July. They are not depreciated until they are bought into use.

Leased Assets

Finance Leased Assets

Leasing agreements which transfer to the College substantially all the benefits and risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an asset are treated as finance leases.

Assets held under finance leases are recognised initially at the fair value of the leased asset or, if lower,
the present value of minimum lease payments as determined at inception of the lease. Lease payments
are treated as consisting of capital and interest elements. The interest is charged to profit or loss to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. The corresponding
liability to the lessor is included in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation.

Assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful economic life of the
asset and assessed for impairment losses in the same way as for owned assets.

The College does not currently have any finance leases.

Operating Leases

All other leases are operating leases and annual rents are charged to comprehensive income on a
straight line basis over the term.

Stock

Stock is valued at the lower of cost (using the FIFO method) and net realisable value. Where necessary,
provision is made for obsolete and defective items.

Farm stock is valued at net realisable value.

Financial instruments

The College has chosen to adopt sections 11 and 12 of FRS 102 in full in respect of financial instruments.
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Financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the College becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial liabilities and equity are classified according to the substance of the financial instrument's
contractual obligations, rather than the financial instrument's legal form.

All financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at transaction price (including transaction costs),
except for those financial assets measured at fair value measured through the Statement of
Comprehensive Income, which are initially measured at fair value (which is normally the transaction
price excluding transaction costs), unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction. A
financial asset or financial liability that is payable or receivable within one year is measured at the
undiscounted amount expected to be received or paid net of impairment, unless it is a financing
transaction. Ifan arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, the financial asset or financial liability
is measured at the present value of the future payments discounted at a market rate of interest for a
similar debt instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset only when there is a current legally enforceable right
to set off the recognised amounts and the intention to either settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

Derecognition offinancial assets and liabilities

A financial asset is derecognised only when the contractual rights to cash flows expire or are settled, or
substantially, all the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to another party, or if some
significant risks and rewards of ownership are retained but control of the asset has transferred to
another party that is able to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party. A financial liability
(or part thereof) is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires.

Taxation

The College is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 Finance Act 201 O and
therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes. Accordingly, the
College is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received within categories
covered by sections 478-488 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of
Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable
purposes.

The College is partially exempt in respect of Value Added Tax, so that it can only recover around 1% of
the VAT charged on its inputs. Irrecoverable VAT on inputs is included in the costs of such inputs and
added to the cost of tangible fixed assets as appropriate, where the inputs themselves are tangible fixed
assets by nature.
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Provisions for liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the College has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of a past event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required to settle the obligation,
and the amount of the obligation can be reliably measured.

Where the effect of time value of money is material, the amount expected to be required to settle the
obligation is recognised at present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to
the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income in the period it arises.

Agency arrangements

The College acts as an agent in distributing bursary support funds and apprenticeship employer
incentive payments from the funding body. Payments received from the funding bodies and subsequent
disbursements to students and their employers are excluded from the income and expenditure of the
College where the College does not have control over the economic benefit related to the transaction.

2. Critical accounting judgements and estimation uncertainty

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

• Tangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets are depreciated over their useful lives taking into account residual values,
where appropriate. The actual lives of the assets and residual values are assessed annually
and may vary depending on a number of factors. In re-assessing asset lives, factors such as
technological innovation, maintenance programmes, economic utilisation and physical
condition of the assets are taken into account. Residual value assessments consider issues
such as future market conditions and the remaining life of the asset.
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• Local Government Pension Scheme
The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) defined benefit liability
depends on a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of
assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost (income) for pensions include
the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 26, will
impact the carrying amount of the pension liability. Furthermore, a roll forward approach which
projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2019 has been
used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31 July 2021. Any differences between
the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact
on the carrying amount of the pension liability.
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3 Funding Body Grants
2021
£'000

2020
£'000

Recurrent grants
Education and Skills Funding Agency - Adult
Education and Skills Funding Agency - 16-18
Education and Skills Funding Agency - Apprenticeships

Specific Grants
Education Skills Funding Agency
Education Skills Funding Agency - Provider Relief Scheme
Education Skills Funding Agency - Tuition Fund
Education Skills Funding Agency - Covid 19 Testing
Education Skills Funding Agency -T Level Specialist Equipment Allocation
Release of government capital grants

Total

1,826
16,459
2,204

1,038

445
48
33

1,070

23,123

1,644
13,826
2,270

734
122

1,033

19,629

The College received specific grant funding during the year from the ESFA. These amounts were fully spent in the year.

4 Tuition Fees and Education Contracts
2021 2020
£'000 £'000

Adult education fees 318 362
Apprenticeship fees and contracts 40 61
Fees for FE loan supported courses 534 532
Total tuition fees 892 955
Education contracts 1,576 1,223

Total 2,468 2,178

5 Other Grants and Contracts
2021 2020
£'000 £'000

UK-Based Charities 74 25
Other grants and contracts 87 449

161 474
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6 Other Income

Catering income
Rental, service charge and lease premium
Trips and materials
Enhanced pension charge
Other income generating activities
Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme grant
Miscellaneous income

Total

2021 2020
£'000 £'000

223 354
103 109
24 98
58 60

165 207
55 79

152 69

780 976

The Corporation furloughed some of the catering staff, salon receptionists, apprenticeship staff and sports
centre staff under the government's Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme. The funding received of £55k relates to
staff costs which are included within the staff costs note as appropriate.

7 Investment Income

Interest receivable

8 Restricted Income

Restricted donations

2021
£'O0O

2

2021
£'00O

2020
£'000

65

2020
£'000
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9 Staff Costs

The average number of persons (including key management personnel) employed by the College during
the year was:

2021 2020
No. No.

Teaching staff 295 261
Non-teaching staff 308 286

603 547

Restructuring costs

Total Staff Costs

- Contractual
- Non-contractual

13,048
1,096

25 3,891
70
(32)

18,073
102

18,175
5

18,180

11,133
936

3,029
(27)

15,071
100

15,171
228

15,399

Payroll sub-total
Contracted out staffing services

Staff costs for the above persons
Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Other pension costs (including non-cash pension adjustments
of £957,000 debit - 2020 £492,000 debit)
Movement in UoS enhanced pension debtor
Actuarial movement in enhanced pension scheme

Key management personnel

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing
and controlling the activities of the College and are represented by the Executive team which comprises
the Principal, Deputy Principal and Vice Principal.

Emoluments of key management personnel, Accounting Officer and other higher paid staff

The number of key management personnel including the
Accounting Officer was:

2021
No.

3

2020
No.

3
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9 Staff Costs (continued)

The number of key management personnel and other staff who received annual emoluments, excluding pension
contributions, but including benefits in kind in the following ranges was:

Key Management Personnel
Other Staff

£60,001 to £65,000 p.a
£70,001 to £75,000 p.a
£80,001 to £85,000 p.a
£85,001 to £90,000 p.a
£90,001 to £95,000 p.a
£135,001 to £140,000 p.a
£140,001 to £145,000 p.a

Salaries - gross of salary sacrifice
Employers NI contributions
Benefits in kind

Pension contributions paid - TPS
Pension contributions paid - LGPS
Total emoluments

2021
No.

1
1

1

3

2020
No.

2021
No.
1

2020
No.

1

Key management personnel emoluments are made up as follows:

1
1

1

3 1 1

2021 2020
£'000 £'000
313 301
39 38
4 4

356 343
53 50
23 24

432 417

One member of key management personnel sacrifices £2,916 of salary.

The above emoluments include amounts payable to the Accounting Officer (who is also the highest paid of key
management personnel) of:

Accounting Officer 2021 2020
£'000 £'000

Salaries 138 135
Benefits in kind 3 2

141 137
Pension contributions 33 31
Total emoluments 174 168
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9 Staff Costs (continued)

The remuneration of the Accounting Officer for 2020-21 was determined on 14 January 21 by the College's
Remuneration Committee. The Accounting Officer was not involved in setting their remuneration. The factors
taken into account by the Committee in determining the Accounting Officer's remuneration for the year to 31
July 2021 included: previous increases, components of pay in prior year, pay increases for other staff,
performance against personal objectives, performance of the organisation, sector data on pay of accounting
officers and benchmarking (or other means of comparison to the broader market). Performance was measured
by the review of the targets set, undertaken by the Chair of Corporation, with evidence to support achievement
and subsequent report of the outcome to Remuneration Committee ahead of the decision on salary.
A similar approach was used to determine the remuneration of the other key management personnel.

The relationship between the accounting officer's emoluments, expressed as a multiple of all other employees
based on full-time equivalents is set out below for both salary and total remuneration. This calculation excludes
any contracted out staffing services.

Basic salary as a multiple of median basic salary of staff
Total remuneration as a multiple of median total remuneration of staff

Compensation for loss of office paid to former key management personnel

2021
No.
5.90
5.90

2020
No.
5.70
5.70

There were no compensation payments made in either of years ending 31 July 2021 or 31 July 2020.

Governors' Remuneration

The Accounting Officer and the staff member only receive remuneration in respect of services they provide
undertaking their roles of Principal and staff members under contracts of employment and not in respect of their
roles as governors. The other members of the Corporation did not receive any payments for the College in
respect of their roles as governors.

During the year no governors (2020-2) with total expenses of £Nil (2020 -£756) were paid to or on their behalf
in respect of travel and subsistence and other out of pocket expenses incurred in the course of their duties.
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10 Other Operating Expenses

Teaching costs
Non-teaching costs
Premises costs

Exceptional costs of merger

Total

Other operating expenses include:

Fees payable to RSM UK LLP in respect of both audit and non-audit fees:
Audit of College
Other assurance services

Internal Audit
Leasehold premises rental
Hire of other assets held under operating leases

11 Interest and other finance costs

2021 2020
£'000 £'000

2,605 2,094
1,156 1,497
1,740 1,283
5,501 4,874

175

5,501 5,049

2021 2020
£'000 £'000

48 36
8

20
71 38
56 63

2021
£'000

2020
£'000

On bank loans, overdrafts and other loans: 287 265
287 265

On provisions made in previous years for early retirements 20 27 37
Net interest on defined pension liability 26 176 142

490 444

12 Taxation

The members do not believe that the College was liable for any corporation tax arising from its activities during
either year.
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13 Intangible Fixed Assets

Cost or Valuation
At 1 August 2020
Additions
As at 31 July 2021

Software Total
£'000 £'000

218 218
30 30

248 248

Depreciation
At 1 August 2020
Charge for the year
At 31 July 2021

Net book value at 31July 2021

Net book value at 31 July 2020

14 Tangible Fixed Assets

Cost or Valuation
At 1 August 2020
Additions
Disposals
Reclassification
At 31 July 2021

Land and
Buildings Equipment

£'000 £'000

87,171 10,301
86 823

(145) (296)

87,112 10,828

140
31

171

77

78

85
1,284

1,369

140
31

171

77

78

97,557
2,193
(441)

99,309

Assets in the
course of

construction Total
£'000 £'000

Depreciation
At 1 August 2020
Charge for the year
Elimination in respect of disposals
At 31 July 2021

Net book value at 31 July 2021

Net book value at 31July 2020

24,652 8,321 32,973
2,021 496 2,517
(131) (291) (422)

26,542 8,526 35,068

60,570 2,302 1,369 64,241

62,519 1,980 85 64,584

Land purchases totalling £4,411,389 (2020: £4,411,389) have not been depreciated.

Land and buildings with a net book value of £1,027,592 (2020: £1,027,592) have been financed by exchequer
funds. Should these assets be sold, then the College may be liable, under the terms of the Financial
Memorandum with the Education and Skills Funding Agency to surrender the proceeds.
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15 Investments

Investments in unlisted subsidiary companies

Total

2021
£'000

10

10

2020
£'000

10

10

The College owns 100% of the issued share capital of Suffolk Education and Training Services Limited, a company
incorporated in England and Wales. The company was dormant throughout the year.

16 Trade and other receivables
2021 2020
£'000 £'000

Trade receivables 109 152
Prepayments and accrued income 517 477
Amounts owed by ESFA 179 178
Other receivables 3,268 702
Amounts owed by UoS for enhanced pensions 719 789

Total 4,792 2,298

The amount due from the University of Suffolk (UoS) in respect of enhanced pensions is recoverable after more
than 1 year

Other receivables includes £2,946k in respect of the land deal due from City College Norwich.
Of this £1,870 is due in less than 1 year (May 2022), and £1,076k is due in more than 1 year, amounts payable in
May 2023 and May 2024.
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17 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Bank loans and overdrafts
Trade payables
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertaking
Other taxation and social security
Accruals and deferred income
Government grants (capital)
Other creditors

Accruals and deferred income include:

Holiday pay accrual
Other accruals
Income received from ESFA

- ESFA Grant
- ALL Bursary Clawback
- Employer Support fund Clawback
- Covid-19 Skills Fund Clawback

Deferred income (inc lease premium)

2021 2020
£'000 £'000

369 358
419 525
10 10

284 251
2,392 1,912
2,886 1,203
308 315

6,668 4,574

2021 2020
£'000 £'000

407 368
716 568

735 735
97 3

114
50

273 238

2,392 1,912

18 Creditors: amounts falling due after one year
2021 2020
£'000 £'000

Bank loans 6,712 7,081
Government grants (capital) 26,484 27,225
Lease premium received 1,407 1,444

Total 34,603 35,750
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19 Maturity of debt
2021 2020
£'000 £'000

(a) Bank loans and overdrafts
Bank loans and overdrafts are repayable as follows:
In one year or less 369 358
Between one and two years 385 369
Between two and five years 1,240 1,196
In five years or more 5,087 5,516

Total 7,081 7,439

Bank loans totalling £5.371 million are repayable at a fixed rate of 5.10 per cent inclusive of a borrowing margin
of 0.35 per cent. This is repayable by quarterly instaments, ending December 2035 and is unsecured.

A further bank loan totalling £1.711 million is repayable at a variable rate of 0.35 per cent above LIBOR. This is
repayable by annual instalments ending December 2035 and is also unsecured.

20 Provisions

At 1 August 2020
Utilised in the period
Charged to SoCI
Charged to SoCI in respect of Enhanced Pensions
Actuarial gain/(loss) recognised in year

At 31 July 2021

Defined
benefit

obligations
£'000

(11,247)
1,258
(2,391)

(228)

(12,608)

Enhanced
pensions

£'000

(2,015)
139
(27)
32

(1,871)

Total
£'000

(13,262)
1,397
(2,418)

32
(228)

(14,479)

Defined benefit obligations relate to the liabilities under the College's membership of the Local Government
pension Scheme. Further details are given in note 26.

The enhanced pension provision relates to the cost of staff who have already left the College's employment.
This provision has been recalculated in accordance with guidance issued by the funding bodies.

2021 2020
Discount rate
Price inflation

1.60%
2.60%

1.30%
2.20%

Under the terms of the separation agreement between University of Suffolk (UoS) and Suffolk New College, UoS
has undertaken to pay on an ongoing basis 50% of the annual cost of the enhanced pension payment back to the
College. This amount is recognised as a debtor in these accounts.
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21 Analysis of changes in net debt

Cash in hand, and at bank

Debt due within 1 year
Debt due after 1 year

At 1 August
2020
£'000

4,730

4,730

(358)
(7,081)

Cash flow
£'000

2,699

2,699

358

Other At 31July
changes 2021

£'000 £'000

7,429

7,429

(369) (369)
369 (6,712)

348(2,709) 3,057

22 Capital and other commitments

Commitments contracted for at 31 July

23 Lease obligations

2021
£'000

358

2020
£'000

12

At 31 July, the College had minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases as follows:
2021 2020

Future minimum lease payment due

Land and buildings
Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later than five years
Later than five years

£'000

73
238

1,589
1,900

£'000

73
253

1,646
1,972
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24 Contingent liabilities

Following the demerger of Easton and Otley College on 31 December 2019, it was agreed by Suffolk New College
and City College Norwich that only current staff would transfer from the Norfolk Local Government Pension
Scheme (LGPS) to the Suffolk LGPS. All other pensioners and deferred pensioners stayed within the Norfolk LGPS.
These members comprise of the Easton and the Otley pre-2012 merger (both pensioners and deferred
pensioners) and the pensioners and deferred pensioners of the combined Easton and Otley College up to the date
of the de-merger.

At the point of the 31 March 2019 triennial valuation these members were fully funded within the Norfolk LGPS
and therefore no provision has been made with these accounts in respect of these. Legal agreements are in place
to determine the percentages of any future contributions to funding agreements with Norfolk LGPS that the
College may incur.

The next valuation of the pension scheme will be 31 March 2022. At this point the College will determine
whether any provision for liability is required.
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25 Defined benefit obligations

The College's employees belong to two principal post-employment benefit plans: the Teachers' Pension Scheme
England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Suffolk Local Government Pension Scheme
(LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by Suffolk County Council. Both are multi-employer defined
benefit plans.

Total pension cost for the year

Teachers' Pension Scheme:
contributions paid

Local Government Pension Scheme:
Contributions paid
FRS 102 (28) charge

Charge to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income

Enhanced pension charge to the
Statement of Comprehensive Income
Total Pension Cost for Year within
Staff Costs

1,215
957

2021
£'000

1,719

2,172

38

3,929

1,092
492

2020
£'000

1,445

1,584

(27)

3,002

The pension costs are assessed in accordance with the advice of independent qualified actuaries. The latest
formal actuarial valuation of the TPS was 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS 31 March 2019.

Contributions amounting to £319,316 (2020: £301,933) were payable to the schemes at 31 July, and are included
within creditors.

Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the
Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. The TPS is an unfunded scheme and members contribute on a 'pay
as you go' basis - these contributions, along with those made by employers, are credited to the Exchequer. The
TPS is a multi-employer pension plan and there is insufficient information to account for the scheme on as a
defined benefit plan so it is accounted for as a defined contribution plan.
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25 Defined benefit obligations (continued)

Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme
Not less than every four years the Government Actuary ("GA"), using normal actuarial principles, conducts a
formal actuarial review of the TPS. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future contributions. Actuarial
scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and many
other factors.

The latest actuarial valuation was carried out as at 31 March 2016 and in accordance with The Public Service
Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 except it has been prepared following the
Government's decision to pause the operation of the cost control mechanisms at the time when legal challenges
were still pending.

The valuation report was published in April 2019. The key results of the valuation and subsequent consultation
are:
- Total scheme liabilities for service (pensions currently payable and the estimated cost of future

benefits) of £218 billion
- Value of notional assets (estimated future contributions together with the proceeds from the

notional investments held at the valuation date) of £196 billion
Notional past service deficit of £22 billion
Discount rate is 2.4% in excess of CPI

As a result of the valuation, new employer contribution rates were set at 23.68% of pensionable pay from
September 2019 onwards (Increased from 16.48% ). DfE has paid a teacher pension employer contribution grant
to cover the additional costs during the 2020/21 academic year and currently through to March 22. The next
valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2023.

The pension cost paid to TPS in the year amounted to £1,718,766 (2020: £1,444,773)

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined-benefit plan, with the assets held in separate funds administered by Suffolk County
Council. The total contributions made for the year ended 31 July 2021 were £1,516,000, of which employer's
contributions totalled £1,215,000 and employees' contributions totalled £301,000. The agreed contribution rates
for future years are 23.2% for employers and range from 5.5% to 12.5% for employees, depending on salary.
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Principal Actuarial Assumption

The following information is based upon a full actuarial valuation of the fund at 31 March 2019 updated to 31July
2021 by a qualified independent actuary.

Rate of increase in salaries
Future pensions increases
Discount rate for scheme liabilities
Inflation assumption (CPI)

At 31 July At 31 July
2021 2020

3.50% 2.80%
2.60% 1.90%
1.70% 1.50%
2.60% 1.90%

Commutation

An allowance is included for future retirements to elect to take 25% of the maximum additional tax-free cash up
to HMRC limits for pre-April 2008 service and 63% of the maximum tax-free cash for post April 2008 service.

The average life expectancy for a pensioner retiring at 65 on the reporting date is:

Retiring today
Males
Females

Retiring in 20 years
Males
Females

At 31 July
2021

22.10
24.50

23.20
26.40

At 31July
2020

21.90
24.10

22.70
25.60

The College's share of the assets in the plan at the reporting date and the expected rates of return were:

Fair Value at Fair Value at
31July 2021 31 July 2020

£'000 £'000
Equity instruments 24,760 18,458
Debt instruments 9,523 8,592
Property 3,047 2,865
Cash 763 1,909
Fair value of plan assets 38,093 31,824

Actual return on plan assets 5,599 (766)
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The amount included in the statement of financial position in respect of the defined benefit pension plan and
2021 2020
£'000 £'000

Fair value of plan assets 38,093 31,824
Present value of liabilities (50,282) (42,614)
Present value of unfunded liabilities (419) {457)

Net pensions (liability) 20 (12,608) (11,247)

Amounts recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in respect of the plan are as follows:

2021 2020
Amounts included in staff costs £'000 £'000
Current service cost (2,215) (1,584)
Total (2,215) (1,584)

Amounts included in investment income 2021 2020
£'000 £'000

Net interest expense (176) (142)
(176) (142)

Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 2021 2020
£'000 £'000

Return on pension plan assets 5,117 (1,450)
Experience losses arising on defined benefit obligations 549 2,372
Changes in demographic assumptions (700) (1,088)
Changes in assumptions underlying the present value of the plan (5,194) (3,758)
Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (228) (3,924)

Asset and Liability Reconciliation

Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations 2021 2020
£'000 £'000

Defined benefit obligations at start of period 43,071 34,492
Current service cost 2,215 1,584
Interest cost 658 826
Contributions by Scheme participants 288 235
Changes in financial assumptions 5,194 3,758
Estimated benefits paid (876) (911)
Changes in demographic assumptions 700 1,088
Other experience adjustments (549) (2,372)
Effect of business combinations 4,371
Defined benefit obligations at end of period 50,701 43,071
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Changes in fair value of plan assets 2021 2020
£'000 £'000

Fair value of plan assets at start of period 31,824 28,928
Interest on plan assets 482 684
Return on plan assets 5,117 (1,450)
Employer contributions 1,258 1,092
Contributions by scheme participants 288 235
Estimated benefits paid (876) (911)
Effect of business con bi nations 3,246
Fair value of plan assets at end of period 38,093 31,824

26 Related party transactions

Owing to the nature of the College's operations and the composition of the Corporation being drawn from local
public and private sector organisations, it is inevitable that transactions will take place with organisations in which
a member of the Corporation may have an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted
in accordance with the College's financial regulations and normal procurement procedures.

The College has dealings with Inspire Suffolk of which Mr Roger Fern (Deceased), (Vice-Chair of Corporation) was
a Director. During the year the College purchased Services to the value of £205,428 (2020: £211,961) and
provided services to the value of £3,863 (2020: £0)

At the end of the year the College owed Inspire Suffolk £Nil (2020: £32,749) and Inspire owed the College £Nil
(2020: £Nil)

The College has dealings with Ben Elvin Planning Consultant Limited of which Mary Gleave (Vice Principal) is a
Spouse of the Director of the company. During the year the College purchased Services to the value of £1,641
(2020: £Nil)

At the end of the year there was no balance outstanding. (2020: £Nil)

The College has dealings with the University of Suffolk of which Dr Mark Lyne, (Corporation Member) was Head of
Quality Enhancement. During the year the College purchased services to the value of £20,850 (2020: £20,247)
and provided services to the value of £408,636 (2020: £413,922)

At the end of the year The University of Suffolk owed the College £59,782 (2020: £59,896) and the College owed
the University £18,200 (2020: £17,438)

The College has dealings with Hudson Sign Solutions of which Mr Stephen Flory (Co-opted Corporation Member)
is a Director of the company. During the year the College purchased Services to the value of £11,217 (2020:
£16,401)

At the year end the College owed Hudson Sign Solutions £3,180 (2020: £Nil)

Transactions under £1,000 in total have been ignored as they are not considered material in relation to Related
Party Transactions.
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27 Amounts disbursed as agent

Discretionary support funds

Funding body grants- 16-18 bursary
Funding body grants - Advanced Learner Loan

Disbursed to students
Administration costs

Balance unspent as at 31 July, included in creditors

Employer Incentive Payments

2021 2020
£'000 £'000

760 656
283 156

1,043 812

(839) (750)
(36) (28)

168 34

Funding body grants
Disbursed to Employers

Balance unspent as at 31 July, included in creditors

2021
£'000

157
(156)

1

2020
£'000

170
(169)

1

Funding body grants are available solely for students or their employers. In the majority of instances, the College
only acts as a paying agent. In these circumstances, the grants and related disbursements are therefore excluded
from the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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28 Merger with Otley College

On 1 January 2020 Easton and Otley College ceased to exist. The former assets and liabilities of Easton and Otley
College were split between Suffolk New College and City College Norwich. The former Otley College assets and
liabilities were transferred to Suffolk New College for £Nil consideration.

The transfer has been accounted for as a combination that is in substance a gift. The assets and liabilities
transferred were valued at the fair values and recognised in the balance sheet under the appropriate headings
with a corresponding net amount recognised as a net gain in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as
donations - transfer on merger of Otley College.

As part of the merger, Suffolk New College chose to pay off a loan of £1.3m prior to the merger which was linked
to the Otley campus. The liability is reflected in the net assets transferred.

A land deal, linked to the transfer was completed in May 2021. Whilst the exact figure that Suffolk New College is
due to receive from City College is still the subject of ongoing negotiations, it is estimated that the minimum
amount that the College will receive is £2,946k, and this figure has been recognised in these accounts. The actual
cash payments will be received in 3 amounts in May 2022, May 2023 and May 2024.

The following table sets out the fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities transferred and an analysis of
the recognition in the Statement of Financial Position.

Net assets transferred:

Leasehold land and buildings
Other tangible fixed assets
Cash
Other debtors and creditors
Pension scheme deficit

29 Donations of Assets

Donations of Laptops from DfE at valuation

2021
£'000

2,946

2,946

2021
£'000

116

116

2020
£'000

11,278
91

776
(1,755)
(1,322)

9,068

2020
£'000
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Conclusion

We have carried out an engagement, in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 21
October 2021 and further to the requirements of the grant funding agreements and contracts with the
Education and Skills Funding Agency (the "ESFA") or any other public funder, to obtain limited
assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and income received by Suffolk New College
during the period 1 August 2020 to 31 July 2021 have been applied to the purposes identified by
Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects
the expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 August 2020 to 31 July 2021 have
not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to
the authorities which govern them

.Basis for conclusion

The framework that has been applied is set out in the Post-16 Audit Code of Practice (the Code) issued
by the ESFA and in any relevant conditions of funding concerning adult education notified by a relevant
funder. In line with this framework, our work has specifically not considered income received from the
main funding grants generated through the Individualised Learner Record {ILR) data returns, for which
the ESFA has other assurance arrangements in place.

We are independent of Suffolk New College in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
applicable to this engagement and we have fulfilled our ethical requirements in accordance with these
requirements. We believe the assurance evidence we have obtained is sufficient to provide a basis for
our conclusion

Respective responsibilities of Corporation of Suffolk New College for regularity

The Corporation of Suffolk New College is responsible, under the grant funding agreements and
contracts with the ESFA and the requirements of the Further & Higher Education Act 1992, subsequent
legislation and related regulations and guidance, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income
received are applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to
the authorities which govern them. The Corporation of Suffolk New College is also responsible for
preparing the Governing Body's Statement of Regularity, Propriety and Compliance.

Reporting accountant's responsibilities for reporting on regularity

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's
ethical guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement
letter and the requirements of the Code.
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The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information
and explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative
conclusion on regularity. A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable
assurance engagement and the procedures performed vary in nature and timing from, and are less in
extent than for a reasonable assurance engagement; consequently a limited assurance engagement
does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive
opinion.

We report to you whether anything has come to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests
that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 August
2020 to 31 July 2021 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial
transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our work included identification and assessment of the design and operational effectiveness of the
controls, policies and procedures that have been implemented to ensure compliance with the framework
of authorities including the specific requirements of the grant funding agreements and contracts with
the ESFA and high level financial control areas where we identified a material irregularity is likely to
arise. We undertook detailed testing, on a sample basis, on the identified areas where a material
irregularity is likely to arise where such areas are in respect of controls, policies and procedures that
apply to classes of transactions.

This work was integrated with our audit of the financial statements and evidence was also derived from
the conduct of that audit to the extent it supports the regularity conclusion.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Corporation of Suffolk New College and the Secretary of State for
Education acting through the ESFA in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter. Our work
has been undertaken so that we might state to the Corporation of Suffolk New College and the Secretary
of State for Education acting through the ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and
for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility
to anyone other than the Corporation of Suffolk New College and the Secretary of State for Education
acting through the ESFA for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

RSM UK AUDIT LLP
Chartered Accountants
Blenheim House
Newmarket Road
Bury St Edmunds
Suffolk
IP33 3SB
Date

20 Decae/ 2o21
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